Alan J. Lipkin Shaunna D. Jones Anna C. Burns Alex W. Cannon WILLKIE FARR & GALLAGHER LLP 787 Seventh Avenue New York, New York 10019 Tel: (212) 728-8000 Fax: (212) 728-8111

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY CO	DURT	
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK	K	
	X	
In re	:	Chapter 11
Interfaith Medical Center, Inc., ¹	:	Case No. 12-48226 (CEC)
	:	
Debtor.	:	
	X	

NOTICE OF FILING OF CHANGES TO FIRST AMENDED PLAN OF REORGANIZATION FOR INTERFAITH MEDICAL CENTER, INC.

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on March 21, 2014, Interfaith Medical Center, Inc., the debtor and debtor in possession in the above-captioned case (the "<u>Debtor</u>"), filed the Plan of Reorganization for Interfaith Medical Center, Inc. [Docket No. 977].

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that on April 8, 2014, the Debtor filed the First Amended Plan of Reorganization for Interfaith Medical Center, Inc. (the "<u>First Amended</u> <u>Plan</u>") [Docket No. 1017].

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that based upon and related to changes presented and agreed to or otherwise referenced at the hearing on April 9, 2014 for approval of the First Amended Disclosure Statement for the First Amended Chapter 11 Plan of Reorganization for Interfaith Medical Center, Inc. (the "<u>First Amended Disclosure</u> <u>Statement</u>"), the Debtor has revised the First Amended Plan (as further amended, the

¹ The last four digits of the Debtor's federal tax identification number are 6155. The Debtor's mailing address is 1545 Atlantic Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 11213.

Case 1-12-48226-cec Doc 1029 Filed 04/11/14 Entered 04/11/14 10:58:05

"<u>Circulated Plan</u>") that will be annexed to as Exhibit 1 to the First Amended Disclosure Statement.

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that annexed hereto as <u>Exhibit A</u> is a copy of the Circulated Plan and annexed hereto as <u>Exhibit B</u> is a blackline of the Circulated Plan reflecting changes from the First Amended Plan.

Dated: April 11, 2014

WILLKIE FARR & GALLAGHER LLP

By: <u>/s/ Alan J. Lipkin</u> Alan J. Lipkin Shaunna D. Jones Anna C. Burns Alex W. Cannon 787 Seventh Avenue New York, New York 10019 Tel: (212) 728-8000 Fax: (212) 728-8111

Attorneys to Debtor and Debtor in Possession

EXHIBIT A

Circulated Plan

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY O		
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YOR		
 Tu	X	Character 11
In re	:	Chapter 11
Interfaith Medical Center, Inc., ¹	•	Case No. 12-48226 (CEC)
Debtor.	:	
	Х	

FIRST AMENDED PLAN OF REORGANIZATION FOR INTERFAITH MEDICAL CENTER, INC.

Dated: April 9, 2014

WILLKIE FARR & GALLAGHER LLP

787 Seventh Avenue New York, New York 10019-6099 (212) 728-8000

Attorneys for Debtor and Debtor in Possession

¹ The last four digits of the Debtor's federal tax identification number are 6155. The Debtor's mailing address is 1545 Atlantic Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 11213.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

ARTICLE I	- DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS	1
ARTICLE I	I - GENERAL CLASSIFICATION PROVISIONS	8
2.1	General Rules of Classification	8
2.2	Unclassified Claims.	8
ARTICLE I	II - CLASSIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND INTERESTS	8
ARTICLE I	V - TREATMENT OF UNCLASSIFIED CLAIMS	9
4.1	Certain Administrative Claims	9
4.2	Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claims	9
4.3	Fee Claims	10
4.4	Claims for U.S. Trustee Fees.	10
ARTICLE	V - TREATMENT OF CLASSIFIED CLAIMS	11
5.1	Priority Claims – Class 1.	
5.2	Priority Tax Claims – Class 2.	
5.3	Other Secured Claims – Class 3	
5.4	DASNY Claims – Class 4.	12
5.5	East Building Claims – Class 5	
5.6	General Unsecured Claims – Class 6.	
5.7	Existing Equity Interests – Class 7.	14
ARTICLE	VI - PROVISIONS CONCERNING RESOLUTION OF CLAIMS	14
6.1	Resolution of Medical Malpractice Claims.	
6.2	Mediation	
6.3	Release of Indemnification Claims Related to Medical Malpractice Claims.	16
6.4	Objections to Claims.	
0.4 6.5	Late Filed Claims	
0. <i>3</i> 6.6	Amendments to Claims	
6.7	Estimation of Claims	
0.7 6.8	Proposed I M Foundation Settlement	
6.9	Plan as a Settlement.	
0.9	rian as a Settlement.	10
ARTICLE	VII - MEANS OF EXECUTION OF THIS PLAN	18
7.1	Corporate Action	
7.2	Post-Effective Date Board of Trustees	
7.3	Post-Effective Date Management.	
7.4	The Liquidating Trust and Liquidating Trustee	
7.5	The Disbursement Agent.	
7.6	Sources and Uses of Plan Funding	
7.7	Use of Restricted Funds.	
7.8	New Bar Dates for Filing Certain Claims	21

7.9	General Claims Distribution Mechanics.	
7.10	Withholding Taxes	
7.11	Exemption from Certain Transfer Taxes.	
7.12	Setoffs and Recoupments	
7.13	Insurance Preservation and Proceeds.	
ARTICLE	VIII - CONDITIONS PRECEDENT	25
8.1	Conditions Precedent to Confirmation	
8.2	Conditions Precedent to the Effective Date.	
8.3	Waiver of Conditions Precedent.	
8.4	Effect of Non-Occurrence of the	
	Conditions Precedent to Confirmation and Effective Date	
ARTICLE	IX - EFFECTS OF PLAN CONFIRMATION	27
9.1	Discharge	27
9.2	Releases of Liens.	
9.3	Vesting and Either Retention or Assignment of Causes of Action	
9.4	Treatment of Certain Indemnification Obligations.	
9.5	Releases, Injunctions, and Related Provisions	
9.6	Termination of Services of Patient Care Ombudsman	
9.7	Dissolution of Creditors' Committee	
ARTICLE	X - EXECUTORY CONTRACTS AND UNEXPIRED LEASES	
10.1	Assumption and Rejection.	
10.2	Cure Matters	
10.3	Bar Date for Rejection Damages Claims.	
ARTICLE	XI - AMENDMENTS TO AND/OR WITHDRAWAL OF THIS PLAN	
11.1	Reservation of Rights	
11.2	Impact of Withdrawal of Plan	
-	XII - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	
12.1	Closing of the Chapter 11 Case	
12.2	Retention of Jurisdiction.	
12.3	Governing Law.	
12.4	Severability.	
12.5	Time	
12.6	Monetary Figures.	
12.7	Successors and Assigns	
12.8	Controlling Documents.	
12.9	Notices	
12.10	Reservation of Rights	

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS

A. Definitions.

The capitalized terms set forth below shall have the following meanings:

1.1 1545 Atlantic means 1545 Atlantic Development LLC.

1.2 Administrative Claim means a Claim, other than a DASNY Claim for payment of costs or expenses of administration specified in sections 503(b) and 507(a)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code, including, without limitation, the actual and necessary costs and expenses incurred after the Petition Date in operating the business of the Debtor (such as wages, salaries or commissions for services rendered).

1.3 Administrative Claim Bar Date means any deadline for filing proof of a Claim that arose after the Petition Date, as established by an order of the Bankruptcy Court or this Plan, except for any deadline for a Fee Claim or a Claim for Payment of U.S. Trustee Fees.

1.4 Allowed means any Claim against the Debtor that: (a) is not disputed; and (b) (i) is scheduled by the Debtor in its schedule of assets and liabilities pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code and Bankruptcy Rules in a liquidated amount and not listed as contingent, unliquidated, or disputed; (ii) proof of which has been timely filed, or deemed timely filed, with the Bankruptcy Court pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code, the Bankruptcy Rules and/or any applicable orders of the Bankruptcy Court, or late filed with leave of the Bankruptcy Court; and not objected to within any period fixed herein, the Bankruptcy Code, the Bankruptcy Rules and/or applicable orders of the Bankruptcy Court; (iii) has been allowed by an agreement between the holder of such Claim and the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor; or (iv) has otherwise been allowed by a Final Order or pursuant to this Plan. An Allowed Claim: (a) includes a previously Disputed Claim to the extent such Disputed Claim becomes allowed; and (b) shall be net of any setoff or recoupment amount that may be asserted by the Debtor against the holder of such Claim, which shall be deemed to have been setoff or recouped in accordance with the provisions of this Plan.

1.5 Ballot means the ballot, in a form approved by the Bankruptcy Court, distributed to each holder of a Claim eligible to vote on this Plan, on which ballot such holder of a Claim may, <u>inter alia</u>, vote for or against this Plan.

1.6 Bankruptcy Code means title 11 of the United States Code, as now in effect or hereafter amended, as applicable to the Chapter 11 Case.

1.7 Bankruptcy Court means the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Eastern District of New York or any other court exercising competent jurisdiction over the Chapter 11 Case or any matter or proceeding therein.

1.8 Bankruptcy Rules means the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure and the local rules of the Bankruptcy Court (including any applicable local rules of the United States District Court for the Eastern District of New York), as applicable to the Chapter 11 Case.

1.9 Bar Date means any deadline in the Chapter 11 Case for filing proof of a Claim.

1.10 Board means the Debtor's Board of Trustees.

1.11 Business Day means any day except a Saturday, Sunday, or "legal holiday" as such term is defined in Bankruptcy Rule 9006(a).

1.12 Cash means cash and cash equivalents, including, but not limited to, bank deposits, checks, and other similar items of legal tender of the United States of America.

1.13 Chapter 11 Case means the chapter 11 case of the Debtor pending before the Bankruptcy Court.

1.14 Claim means "a claim", as defined by section 101(5) of the Bankruptcy Code, against the Debtor, whether or not asserted.

1.15 Class means a group of Claims classified by this Plan in Article III pursuant to section 1123(a)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code.

1.16 Clinics means the Debtor's ambulatory care network of 8 clinics located in the central Brooklyn communities of Crown Heights and Bedford-Stuyvesant.

1.17 Confirmation Date means the date the Bankruptcy Court enters the Confirmation Order on its docket.

1.18 Confirmation Hearing means the hearing on confirmation of this Plan pursuant to section 1129 of the Bankruptcy Code.

1.19 Confirmation Order means the order of the Bankruptcy Court confirming this Plan in accordance with the Bankruptcy Code.

1.20 Covered Person means a physician, resident, fellow, nurse, or other employee of the Debtor entitled to indemnification by the Debtor for certain medical malpractice claims.

1.21 Covered Person Claim means a medical malpractice claim against a Covered Person that would give rise to an Allowed Indemnification Claim by such Covered Person.

1.22 Covered Persons Fund means the separate fund established for Distributions to holders of certain Covered Person Claims, to be comprised of contributions by or on behalf of Covered Persons.

1.23 Creditors' Committee means the Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors in the Chapter 11 Case as appointed by the United States Trustee.

1.24 CRO means the Debtor's Chief Restructuring Officer.

1.25 Cure Amount shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 10.2 herein.

1.26 Cure Dispute shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section

1.27 DASNY means the Dormitory Authority of the State of New York.

1.28 DASNY Claims means DASNY's Claims based on Prepetition Obligations and pursuant to the DIP Facility.

1.29 Debtor means Interfaith Medical Center, Inc.

10.2 herein.

1.30 DIP Facility means the senior secured priming and superpriority debtorin-possession credit facility provided to the Debtor pursuant to the Debtor In Possession Credit Agreement, dated as of October 16, 2013, between IMC, as borrower, and DASNY, as the DIP Lender, as modified and amended from time to time.

1.31 DIP Lender means DASNY, in its capacity as DIP Lender.

1.32 DIP Order means the order of the Bankruptcy Court authorizing and approving the DIP Facility, as modified from time to time.

1.33 Disallowed means a Claim or portion thereof found not to be an Allowed Claim in a finding of the Bankruptcy Court in a Final Order or pursuant to a provision of this Plan.

1.34 Disbursement Agent means the Person to be designated by DASNY on or before the Effective Date to: (i) hold the funds that shall be provided by DASNY to the Debtor pursuant to the DIP Facility and otherwise as set forth in this Plan, all of which funds shall be transferred by the Debtor to the Disbursement Agent on the Effective Date for distribution pursuant to this Plan; and (ii) perform such other functions as are assigned to the Disbursement Agent pursuant to this Plan.

1.35 Disclosure Statement means the Disclosure Statement relating to this Plan that is approved by the Bankruptcy Court pursuant to sections 1125 and 1126(b) of the Bankruptcy Code, as such Disclosure Statement may be amended, modified, or supplemented (and all exhibits annexed thereto or referred to therein and all supplements thereto).

1.36 Disputed means respecting a Claim, that portion (including, when appropriate, the whole) of such Claim that is not Allowed or Disallowed.

1.37 Distribution means the distribution, if any, on a Claim in accordance with this Plan.

1.38 Distribution Date means the latest of: (a) the Effective Date (or as soon thereafter as reasonably practicable); (b) the date payment of a Claim ordinarily would be due and payable; or (c) as soon as reasonably practicable after a Claim becomes an Allowed Claim or otherwise becomes entitled to a distribution under this Plan; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that respecting Fee Claims, the Distribution Date is the date (or as soon thereafter as reasonably practicable) that such Claims are allowed by Final Order of the Bankruptcy Court.

1.39 DOH means the New York State Department of Health.

1.40 DSRIP shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 7.3(a).

1.41 East Building Claims means the Claims of 1545 Atlantic based on or related to the two agreements, dated May 17, 2007, between the Debtor and 1545 Atlantic denominated a "Development Lease" and an "Occupancy Lease".

1.42 Effective Date means a Business Day, selected by the Debtor, with the written consent of DASNY, that is after entry of the Confirmation Order and on which all conditions to the Effective Date set forth in Section 8.2 herein have been satisfied or waived.

1.43 Estate means the estate of IMC created in the Chapter 11 Case pursuant to section 541 of the Bankruptcy Code.

1.44 Estimated Fee Claims shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.3 herein.

1.45 Existing Equity means any existing equity interest in the Debtor.

1.46 Fee Claim means a Claim by: (a) a Professional Person for compensation or reimbursement pursuant to section 327, 328, 330, 331, 503(b) or 1103(a) of the Bankruptcy Code in connection with the Chapter 11 Case; (b) a member of the Creditors' Committee arising under section 503(b)(3)(F) of the Bankruptcy Code; (c) the Ombudsman and its counsel; (d) John Leech as CRO; (e) Gordian-Dynamis Solutions LLC; (f) Melanie Cyganowski as CRO; or (g) ToneyKorf LLC.

1.47 Final Order means an order or judgment of the Bankruptcy Court that has not been reversed, stayed, modified, or amended, and for which: (a) the time to appeal, seek review or rehearing, or petition for certiorari has expired; (b) no timely-filed appeal or petition for review, rehearing, remand, or certiorari is pending; and (c) the order has become conclusive of all matters adjudicated and is in full force and effect; provided, however, that the possibility a motion under Rule 59 or Rule 60 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure may be filed respecting such order shall not signify such order is not a Final Order.

1.48 Fund B Loan Agreement means the Reimbursement Agreement between DASNY and IMC, dated as of March 29, 2005, as amended on June 14, 2011, and as further

amended, restated, supplemented, or otherwise modified from time to time, together with all agreements, documents, notes, and instruments in respect thereof.

1.49 General Unsecured Claim means any prepetition Claim asserted by unsecured non-priority creditors and includes any Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claim.

1.50 Hospital refers to the Debtor's main hospital facility, located at 1545 Atlantic Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 11213.

1.51 IMC means Interfaith Medical Center, Inc., the Debtor.

1.52 Impaired means respecting any Claim or Class of Claims, a Claim or Class impaired within the meaning of section 1124 of the Bankruptcy Code.

1.53 Indemnification Claim means a Claim of a Covered Person based on an indemnity obligation of the Debtor.

1.54 Liquidating Trust means the liquidating trust to be established pursuant to the Plan.

1.55 Liquidating Trust Agreement means the liquidating trust agreement governing the Liquidating Trust substantially in the form annexed to the Plan Supplement.

1.56 Mediation Procedures means the procedures set forth in Section 6.2 of this Plan.

1.57 New Board means the board of trustees of the Reorganized Debtor commencing on the Effective Date.

1.58 Ombudsman means the patient care ombudsman appointed in the Chapter 11 Case by the United States Trustee pursuant to 11 U.S.C. § 333(a).

1.59 Other Secured Claim means, other than a DASNY Claim, that portion of a Claim that is secured by a valid, perfected, and enforceable security interest, lien, mortgage, or other encumbrance, that is not subject to avoidance under applicable bankruptcy or non-bankruptcy law, in or upon any right, title, or interest of the Debtor in and to property of the Debtor's Estate, to the extent of the value of the holder's interest in such property as of the relevant determination date.

1.60 Person means any individual, corporation, partnership, association, indenture trustee, organization, joint stock company, joint venture, estate, trust, governmental unit, or any political subdivision thereof, including, for the avoidance of doubt, the Creditors' Committee, current or former employees of the Debtor, or any other individual or entity.

1.61 Petition Date means December 2, 2012.

1.62 Plan means this Plan, dated as of the date set forth on the first page hereof, including all exhibits annexed hereto, either in its present form or as it may be altered, amended, or modified from time to time.

1.63 Pool Loan Agreement means the Reimbursement Agreement between DASNY and IMC, dated as of November 21, 2011, as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, together with all agreements, documents, notes, and instruments in respect thereof.

1.64 Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claim means any medical malpractice Claim asserted on account of or related to the Debtor's purported liability resulting from the provision of or failure to provide medical services after the Petition Date.

1.65 Prepetition Loan Agreement means the Loan Agreement by and between IMC and DASNY, dated as of January 24, 2007, as amended, restated, supplemented, or otherwise modified from time to time, together with all agreements, documents, notes, and instruments in respect thereof.

1.66 Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claim means any medical malpractice Claim asserted on account of or related to the Debtor's purported liability resulting from the provision of or failure to provide medical services prior to the Petition Date.

1.67 Prepetition Obligations means the Debtor's obligations under the Prepetition Loan Agreement, the Fund B Loan Agreement, and the Pool Loan Agreement.

1.68 Prepetition Loan Documents means the Prepetition Loan Agreement, the Fund B Loan Agreement, the Pool Loan Agreement, and all security, pledge, guaranty, and other lien and loan agreements and documents in connection therewith, each as it may have been amended, restated, supplemented, or otherwise modified from time to time.

1.69 Priority Claim means any Claim asserting entitlement to priority in right of payment under section 507(a) of the Bankruptcy Code, other than: (a) an Administrative Claim; (b) a Priority Tax Claim; (c) a DASNY Claim; or (d) a Fee Claim.

1.70 Priority Tax Claim means any Claim asserting entitlement to priority pursuant to section 507(a)(8) of the Bankruptcy Code.

1.71 Pro Rata means the proportion that a Claim in a particular Class bears to the aggregate amount of the Claims in such Class, excluding Disallowed Claims.

1.72 Professional Person means a Person retained by order of the Bankruptcy Court in connection with the Chapter 11 Case, pursuant to section 327, 328, 330, or 1103 of the Bankruptcy Code.

1.73 Released Parties means the Debtor, the Creditors' Committee, the Ombudsman, and DASNY, and any of their current or former agents, representatives, directors, trustees, officers (including, without limitation, for the Debtor, Melanie Cyganowski as CRO, Steven Korf as Chief Executive Officer, and Robert Mariani as Chief Financial Officer),

members, sponsors, managers, attorneys, accountants, financial advisors, or other professionals, solely in such capacities.

1.74 Reorganized Debtor means the Debtor on and after the Effective Date.

1.75 Temporary Operator means a temporary operator for the Reorganized Debtor appointed pursuant to New York Public Health Law § 2806-a.

1.76 Unclaimed Property means any Distribution (Cash or otherwise) provided for hereunder that is unclaimed 180 days following the date of such Distribution.

1.77 United States Trustee means the Office of the United States Trustee for the Eastern District of New York.

1.78 Unimpaired means respecting a Claim or Class of Claims, a Claim or Class of Claims that is not Impaired.

1.79 U.S. Trustee Fees means fees arising under 28 U.S.C. § 1930(a)(6) and accrued interest thereon arising under 31 U.S.C. § 3717.

1.80 Work Plan shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 7.3(a).

B. Interpretation; Application of Definitions and Rules of Construction.

Unless otherwise specified, all section or exhibit references are to the respective section in, or exhibit to, this Plan.

As used in this Plan, the words "herein," "hereof," "hereto," "hereunder," and other words of similar import refer to this Plan as a whole and not to any particular section, subsection, or clause of this Plan.

Any capitalized term used herein that is not defined herein shall have the meaning assigned to that term in the Bankruptcy Code or the Bankruptcy Rules.

Except for the rules of construction contained in sections 102(5) of the Bankruptcy Code, which shall not apply, the rules of construction contained in section 102 of the Bankruptcy Code shall apply to the construction of this Plan.

Any reference in this Plan to another agreement or document being in a particular form or on particular terms and conditions means that such document shall be substantially in such form or substantially on such terms and conditions. Any reference herein to an existing document or exhibit filed or to be filed in connection with this Plan or the Disclosure Statement means such document or exhibit as it may have been or may be amended, modified, or supplemented.

The headings used in this Plan are for convenience of reference only and shall not limit or otherwise affect the provisions hereof.

ARTICLE II

GENERAL CLASSIFICATION PROVISIONS

2.1 General Rules of Classification.

A Claim is classified in a particular Class for voting and distribution purposes only to the extent the Claim qualifies within the description of that Class. Unless otherwise provided, to the extent a Claim qualifies for inclusion in a more specifically defined Class and a more generally-defined Class, it shall be included in the more specifically defined Class.

2.2 Unclassified Claims.

The Bankruptcy Code does not require classification of certain claims against a debtor. In this Plan, such unclassified Claims include Administrative Claims (including, among other things, Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claims, Fee Claims, and Claims for U.S. Trustee Fees). Their treatment is set forth in Article IV below.

ARTICLE III

CLASSIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND INTERESTS

The following table designates the Classes of Claims and equity interests under this Plan and specifies which Classes are: (a) Impaired or Unimpaired by this Plan; and (b) entitled to vote to accept or reject this Plan in accordance with section 1126 of the Bankruptcy Code or deemed to accept or reject this Plan:

<u>Class</u>	Designation	<u>Impairment</u>	Entitled to Vote
Class 1	Priority Claims	No	No (Deemed to accept)
Class 2	Priority Tax Claims	No	No (Deemed to accept)
Class 3	Other Secured Claims	No	No (Deemed to accept)
Class 4	DASNY Claims	Yes	Yes
Class 5	East Building Claims	Yes	Yes
Class 6	General Unsecured Claims	Yes	Yes
Class 7	Existing equity interest (if any)	Yes	No (Deemed to reject)

ARTICLE IV

TREATMENT OF UNCLASSIFIED CLAIMS

4.1 *Certain Administrative Claims.*

On the Distribution Date, except to the extent a holder of an Allowed Administrative Claim agrees to different treatment, which treatment shall be acceptable in the sole discretion of the Disbursement Agent, each such Allowed Claim (not including Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claims) shall be paid in full in Cash or otherwise receive treatment consistent with section 1129(a)(9) of the Bankruptcy Code. Nevertheless, Allowed Administrative Claims incurred in the ordinary course of business and on ordinary business terms unrelated to the administration of the Chapter 11 Case (such as Allowed trade and vendor Claims) shall be paid, at the Reorganized Debtor's option, in accordance with ordinary business terms for payment of such Claims.

The amount of funds to be provided by DASNY pursuant to the DIP Facility for payment of all Allowed Administrative Claims shall be determined prior to the Confirmation Date in consultation with DASNY and the Debtor, be included in a Plan Supplement filed with the Court for consideration in connection with confirmation of this Plan, and be binding on all holders of Allowed Administrative Claims. All payments pursuant to this section shall be made by the Disbursement Agent.

4.2 Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claims

Holders of Allowed Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claims not subject to the Election (as described in Section 6.1) shall, in full satisfaction of such Claims as well as any related Covered Persons Claims: (a) receive payment from the Disbursement Agent from: (i) funds provided by DASNY pursuant to the DIP Facility on or prior to the Effective Date; plus (ii) the \$400,000 Indemnity Reserve Fund created by IMC (utilizing DASNY's cash collateral and an I M Foundation contribution), all of which shall be held for Distribution in a segregated account by the Disbursement Agent; or (b) otherwise receive treatment consistent with section 1129(a)(9) of the Bankruptcy Code.

The total amount of funds to be provided by DASNY pursuant to the DIP Facility (together with the Indemnity Reserve Fund) for payment of all such Allowed Claims shall be determined prior to the Confirmation Date in consultation with DASNY and the Debtor, be included in a Plan Supplement filed with the Court for consideration in connection with confirmation of this Plan, and be binding on all holders of Allowed Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claims. Any excess funds in such segregated account after the earlier of: (x) the tenth anniversary of the Effective Date; and (y) the date all such Claims have been resolved and paid, shall be paid to DASNY's designee.

4.3 Fee Claims.

(a) Filing and Payment.

A Fee Claim for which a final fee application has been properly filed and served pursuant to Section 7.7(a) hereof shall be payable by the Disbursement Agent to the extent approved by a Final Order of the Bankruptcy Court.

(b) Estimates and Reserve.

Each holder of a Fee Claim shall be required to submit to the Debtor at least seven days prior to the Confirmation Date, an estimate of the portion of its Fee Claim that will have accrued prior to and including the Confirmation Date, but that has not yet been included in a monthly fee statement or interim fee application previously submitted by such holder (collectively, the "Estimated Fee Claims"). On the Confirmation Date, the Debtor shall reserve and hold in an account Cash equal to the aggregate amount as of the Confirmation Date of each unpaid Estimated Fee Claim plus all unpaid amounts or holdbacks from monthly fee statements or interim fee applications (minus any unapplied retainers). All parties entitled to file Fee Claims shall be entitled to reasonable compensation for fees and expenses incurred through the Effective Date, subject to any necessary approval by the Bankruptcy Court. On the Effective Date, such Cash plus an amount equal to the estimated amount of unpaid Fee Claims accrued from the Confirmation Date to the Effective Date as well as the estimated amount of Fee Claims to be incurred after the Effective Date other than for services for the Reorganized Debtor shall be transferred to the Disbursement Agent and maintained in a separate reserve account at a financial institution pending distribution to holders of Allowed Fee Claims. Such Cash shall be disbursed solely to the holders of Allowed Fee Claims as soon as reasonably practicable after a Fee Claim becomes an Allowed Claim. Upon payment of Allowed Fee Claims, any Cash remaining in such account sufficient to satisfy all other unresolved Fee Claims shall be reserved until all Allowed Fee Claims have been paid in full and all remaining Fee Claims have been Disallowed or not otherwise permitted to be paid by Final Order, at which time(s) any remaining Cash held in reserve respecting the Fee Claims shall become the property of DASNY's designee.

(c) Objections.

Objections to Fee Claims, if any, must be filed and served pursuant to the procedures set forth in the Confirmation Order no later than the latest of forty-four (44) days after the Effective Date, 14 days after the date such Fee Claim is filed, or such other date as established by the Bankruptcy Court.

4.4 Claims for U.S. Trustee Fees.

Under this Plan, on the Effective Date or as soon as practicable thereafter, the Disbursement Agent shall pay all U.S. Trustee Fees then due. Any U.S. Trustee Fees due thereafter shall be paid by the Disbursement Agent or the Liquidating Trust (as applicable based on distributions respecting holders of Allowed Claims) until the earlier of the entry of a final decree closing the Chapter 11 Case, or a Bankruptcy Court order converting or dismissing the case. Any deadline for filing other Administrative Claims or Fee Claims shall not apply to U.S. Trustee Fees.

ARTICLE V

TREATMENT OF CLASSIFIED CLAIMS

5.1 Priority Claims – Class 1.

On the Distribution Date, except to the extent a holder of an Allowed Priority Claim agrees to different treatment, which treatment shall be acceptable in the sole discretion of the Disbursement Agent, each such Allowed Claim shall be paid in full in Cash or otherwise receive treatment consistent with the provisions of section 1129(a)(9) of the Bankruptcy Code; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that any Allowed Priority Claim that is based on any employee's entitlement to paid time off shall be satisfied by the Reorganized Debtor's assumption of the paid time off obligation if such employee is employed by the Reorganized Debtor on the Effective Date.

The amount of funds to be provided by DASNY pursuant to the DIP Facility for payment of all Allowed Priority Claims shall be determined prior to the Confirmation Date in consultation with DASNY and the Debtor, be included in a Plan Supplement filed with the Court for consideration in connection with confirmation of this Plan, and be binding on all holders of Allowed Priority Claims. All payments on Allowed Priority Claims shall be made by the Disbursement Agent.

5.2 Priority Tax Claims – Class 2.

On the Distribution Date, except to the extent a holder of an Allowed Priority Tax Claim agrees to different treatment, which treatment shall be acceptable in the sole discretion of the Disbursement Agent, each holder of such an Allowed Claim shall receive Cash in an amount equal to such Allowed Priority Tax Claim or other treatment consistent with the provisions of section 1129(a)(9) of the Bankruptcy Code.

The amount of funds to be provided by DASNY pursuant to the DIP Facility for payment of all Allowed Priority Tax Claims shall be determined prior to the Confirmation Date in consultation with DASNY and the Debtor, be included in a Plan Supplement filed with the Court for consideration in connection with confirmation of this Plan, and be binding on all holders of Allowed Priority Tax Claims. All payments on Allowed Priority Tax Claims shall be made by the Disbursement Agent.

5.3 Other Secured Claims – Class 3.

On the Distribution Date, except to the extent a holder of an Allowed Other Secured Claim agrees to different treatment, each holder of such an Allowed Claim shall receive: (i) Cash in an amount equal to such Allowed Claim; or (ii) the collateral securing such Allowed Claim. Responsibility for any such payment be shall be, as applicable: (x) DASNY (or the Disbursement Agent) or DASNY's designee (solely respecting Allowed Claims secured by collateral being conveyed to DASNY or its designee pursuant to this Plan); (y) DASNY (or the Disbursement Agent) or the Reorganized Debtor (solely respecting Allowed Claims secured by collateral being retained by the Reorganized Debtor pursuant to this Plan); or (z) the Liquidating Trust (solely respecting Allowed Claims secured by collateral, if any, being conveyed to the Liquidating Trust pursuant to this Plan).

5.4 DASNY Claims – Class 4.

On the Effective Date, in full satisfaction of all of DASNY's Claims, including any DIP Claims, Superpriority Claims, Administrative Claims, Priority Claims, Prepetition Secured Claims, and General Unsecured Claims (except as provided below and in Section 5.6 of this Plan regarding DASNY's Class 6 Claim), the Disbursement Agent, DASNY's designee or the Reorganized Debtor (with DASNY determining in its sole discretion which assets shall be retained by the Reorganized Debtor and which assets shall be conveyed free and clear of any liens, claims, charges, pledges, encumbrances, and/or interests of any kind to DASNY's designee) shall receive all assets of the Debtor (except for those assets this Plan or DASNY determines are to be conveyed to the Liquidating Trust or abandoned), including, without limitation: (a) all real property; (b) all real property leases and other executory contracts; (c) all inventory, furniture, fixtures, and equipment; (d) all accounts receivable for Hospital services; (e) any grants or other funding due to the Debtor; (f) all of the Debtor's medical records; provided, however, the Liquidating Trust shall continue to have reasonable access to such records as needed; (g) all Healthfirst equity interests; (h) all funds set aside by the Debtor for the payment of Allowed Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claims; (i) all funds to be deposited in the Covered Persons Fund; and (j) all funds provided to the Debtor pursuant to the DIP Facility; provided, however, that the Debtor's Medicare provider agreements shall be assumed and retained by the Reorganized Debtor. DASNY also shall receive Plan releases as described in Section 9.5(d).

The Allowed Class 4 Claim shall, if necessary, be estimated for voting purposes at an agreed upon amount. Additionally, DASNY shall have an Allowed General Unsecured Claim in Class 6 for voting purposes, but DASNY shall not be entitled to any Distribution on that Claim if Class 6 accepts this Plan.

Upon entry of the Confirmation Order, but subject to occurrence of the Effective Date, DASNY shall retain all rights, Claims, and liens available pursuant to the DIP Facility and the Prepetition Loan Documents. For the avoidance of doubt, the prohibitions in Paragraph 20 of the DIP Order concerning the use of proceeds of the DIP Facility, DIP Collateral, Prepetition Collateral, Cash Collateral, or the Carve-Outs (as each such term is defined in the DIP Order) to assert any claims, actions, or causes of action against DASNY shall survive confirmation and consummation of this Plan.

5.5 East Building Claims – Class 5.

(a) Settlement Option.

If 1545 Atlantic accepts the Plan, then upon the Confirmation Date, but subject to the occurrence of the Effective Date, the two agreements, dated May 17, 2004, between the Debtor and 1545 Atlantic denominated a "Development Lease" and an "Occupancy Lease" shall be recharacterized as a single financing agreement for an unsecured loan from 1545 Atlantic to the Debtor, with the Debtor then having title to the related land and improvements known as the

"East Building," free and clear of liens, claims, charges, pledges, encumbrances, and/or interests of any kind of 1545 Atlantic, but subject to any valid liens and mortgages of other parties, including DASNY.

In full satisfaction of any Claims of 1545 Atlantic based on those recharacterized agreements, 1545 Atlantic shall receive or retain: (a) the \$4,026,006.28 paid by the Debtor to 1545 Atlantic prepetition; (b) the \$500,000 "security deposit" paid by the Debtor to 1545 Atlantic; (c) the \$300,000 paid by the Debtor to 1545 Atlantic for the postpetition period through March 31, 2014 (or through such later date as such payments are made); (d) \$25,000 per month from Debtor or DASNY's designee (as applicable) for the period April 1, 2014 through March 31, 2015; and (e) an Allowed General Unsecured Claim in Class 6 of \$5,000,000.

(b) Litigation Option.

If 1545 Atlantic rejects the Plan, then 1545 Atlantic's leases shall be either: (i) recharacterized as a disguised financing pursuant to this Plan or, if necessary, pursuant to an adversary proceeding in the Bankruptcy Court; or (ii) rejected pursuant to the Plan and section 365, and notwithstanding section 365(h), the East Building shall be assigned by the Debtor pursuant to section 363(b) and this Plan to DASNY's designee free and clear of liens, claims, charges, pledges, encumbrances, and/or interests of any kind of 1545 Atlantic, but subject to any valid liens and mortgages of other parties, including DASNY. In either case, 1545 Atlantic then shall receive or retain: (v) the \$4,026,006.28 paid by the Debtor to 1545 Atlantic prepetition; (w) the \$500,000 "security deposit" paid by the Debtor to 1545 Atlantic; (x) the \$300,000 paid by the Debtor to 1545 Atlantic for the postpetition period through March 31, 2014 (or through such later date as such payments are made); (y) payment(s) in amounts and at times determined by the Bankruptcy Court to be payable to 1545 Atlantic as adequate protection for any leasehold interest or respecting its rights under its subordination agreement with DASNY; and (z) an allowed General Unsecured Claim in Class 6 in an amount to be determined by the Bankruptcy Court.

5.6 General Unsecured Claims – Class 6.

(a) Provisions Governing All Class 6 Claims

All Holders of Allowed General Unsecured Claims shall receive Pro Rata Distributions from all funds available from the Liquidating Trust after satisfaction of its fees, expenses, and other liabilities. Certain Allowed Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claims also shall receive the additional treatment discussed below.

Class 6 is entitled to vote. DASNY's Class 6 Claim shall be estimated for voting purposes at an agreed upon amount equal to DASNY's deficiency Claims plus its unsecured Claims, with DASNY waiving any Distribution on such Allowed Class 6 Claim if Class 6 accepts this Plan.

(b) Covered Person Claims, i.e., Claims Against Covered Persons Related to Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claims.

A holder of an Allowed Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claim shall be treated as a holder of an Allowed Class 6 Claim and to the extent such holder is also: (i) a holder of a Covered Person Claim that: (A) would give rise to an Allowed Indemnification Claim by such Covered Person; and (B) is not covered by third party insurance; and (ii) does not make the Election as described in Section 6.1 of this Plan, shall also receive a Pro Rata Distribution by the Disbursement Agent from the Covered Persons Fund up to maximum amount per Allowed Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claim to be included in the Plan Supplement.

The amount and sources of funds to be provided for the Covered Persons Fund shall be determined prior to the Confirmation Date in consultation with DASNY and the Debtor, be included in a Plan Supplement filed with the Court for consideration in connection with confirmation of this Plan, and be binding on all holders of Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claims and all Covered Persons. All payments from the Covered Persons Fund shall be made by the Disbursement Agent.

5.7 Existing Equity Interests – Class 7.

Existing equity interests shall not receive or retain any distribution under this Plan.

ARTICLE VI

PROVISIONS CONCERNING RESOLUTION OF CLAIMS

6.1 *Resolution of Medical Malpractice Claims.*

(a) Election.

No later than 90 days after the Effective Date, each holder of a Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claim or a Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claim for which a proof of claim was timely filed (or deemed timely filed) may make the Election to be granted relief from the automatic stay to litigate such holder's Claim in state court provided that if such Election is made, then: (i) any recovery on such Claim shall be limited to available third party insurance, if any; (ii) such holder shall not otherwise receive a Distribution hereunder or any payments based on any related Covered Person Claim; and (iii) such holder shall thereby release each Covered Person from any liability on a related Covered Person Claim except to the extent of available third party insurance (i.e., insurance held by a Covered Person) respecting such Covered Person.

(b) No Election.

If a holder of a Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claim or a Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claim for which a proof of claim was timely filed (or deemed timely filed) does not make the Election on or before 90 days after the Effective Date, then such Claim shall be submitted for resolution through mediation, pursuant to the Mediation Procedures in Section 6.2

of this Plan. If mediation does not resolve such Claim, then such Claim shall be estimated pursuant to section 502(c) of the Bankruptcy Code together with any indemnification, vicarious, or other liability asserted against the Debtor related to such Claim respecting any Covered Person; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that the holder of such Claim may affirmatively opt out from having its Claim so estimated by filing with the Bankruptcy Court an opt out request within 90 days of the Effective Date.

6.2 Mediation.

(a) Selection of Mediator.

The Disbursement Agent shall select the mediator (the "<u>Postpetition Mediator</u>") for each Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claim. Upon a determination there will be sufficient funds available for Distributions on Allowed Class 6 Claims to warrant mediation and that each applicable Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claim cannot be settled at that time without mediation, the Liquidating Trustee shall select a mediator or mediators (the "<u>Class 6 Mediator</u>," and together with the Postpetition Mediator, the "<u>Mediator</u>") without further other of the Court.

(b) Costs.

Each Mediator shall charge its standard hourly rate for services of this kind. The Mediator's fees and expenses incurred in connection with each mediation session shall be the joint responsibility of (i) the Liquidating Trust or the Disbursement Agent, as applicable, and (ii) the applicable Claim holder. If the (i) Liquidating Trust or the Disbursement Agent, as applicable, or (ii) any Claim holder fails to appear for a scheduled mediation session without giving five (5) days written notice, the party failing to appear shall be responsible for 100% of the costs for that mediation session, including attorneys' fees, if any.

(c) Mediation Procedures.

The Mediator shall have the duty and authority to establish reasonable and practical mediation procedures and shall have sole authority to set the date, time, and location of mediation sessions for each Claim subject to mediation. The Mediator, with the consent of the Liquidating Trustee or the Disbursement Agent, as applicable, shall select the order in which Claims will be presented to the Mediator. For the avoidance of doubt, nothing shall preclude the Liquidating Trustee or the Disbursement Agent, as applicable, from attempting to resolve a Claim outside of a mediation session (including, without limitation, by the Disbursement Agent offering a settlement payment).

(d) Notice.

As soon as practicable after the selection of the Mediator for a particular Claim, the Mediator shall serve notice on the holder of the Claim subject to mediation and the Liquidating Trustee or the Disbursement Agent, as applicable, advising that such Claim is subject to mediation. The notice shall contain procedures applicable to the mediation sessions, including timing for submission of documents or statements by the parties. After such service, the Mediator shall confer with each Claim holder and the Liquidating Trustee or the Disbursement Agent, as applicable, and/or their respective representatives to schedule mediation sessions. Once mediation sessions are scheduled by the Mediator (in its sole discretion), the Mediator shall serve notice of the date, time, and location of mediation sessions on the applicable Claim holder and the Liquidating Trustee or the Disbursement Agent, as applicable.

(e) Mediation Sessions.

Any party may be represented at a mediation session by legal counsel at such party's cost and expense, although legal counsel shall not be required for mediation. The Mediator shall meet with the parties or their representatives, individually and jointly, for a conference or series of conferences, as determined by the Mediator. The Mediator shall report any willful failure to attend or participate in good faith in the mediation sessions to the Bankruptcy Court, which may result in the imposition of sanctions by the Bankruptcy Court. The Mediator shall have no obligation to make written comments or recommendations regarding settlement.

(f) Settlements.

A Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claim resolved pursuant to mediation shall be treated as an Allowed Class 6 Claim pursuant to Section 5.6 of this Plan. A Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claim resolved pursuant to mediation shall be satisfied as set forth in Section 4.2 of this Plan.

(g) Confidentiality.

Any statements made by the Mediator, any Claim holder, the Reorganized Debtor, the Liquidating Trustee, the Disbursement Agent, any Covered Person, their respective representatives, or any other Person during the Mediation process shall not be divulged to the Court or any third party. Any reports, records, or other documents received or made by the Mediator shall be confidential. The Mediator shall not be compelled to divulge such records or testify in regard to the Mediation in connection with any other proceeding.

6.3 Release of Indemnification Claims Related to Medical Malpractice Claims.

Each holder of an Allowed Indemnification Claim concerning a Prepetition or Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claim shall be deemed to have waived and released any such Indemnification Claim in exchange for the benefit of the Covered Person Claims Injunction in Section 9.5(f) of this Plan.

6.4 *Objections to Claims.*

Unless otherwise ordered by the Bankruptcy Court, objections to Claims shall be filed and served on the applicable holder of any such Claim not later than 180 days after the later to occur of: (a) the Effective Date; and (b) the filing of the relevant Claim. Such time period may be extended by the Bankruptcy Court.

After the Confirmation Date, only DASNY, the Disbursement Agent, DASNY's designee, the Debtor (only to the Effective Date), and the Reorganized Debtor shall have the authority to file, settle, withdraw, or litigate to judgment objections to Claims, except that after

the Effective Date, the Liquidating Trust will have such authority as to Class 6 Claims. From and after the Effective Date, only the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trustee (as applicable) may settle any Disputed Claim without Bankruptcy Court approval.

6.5 Late Filed Claims

A Claim filed after any applicable Bar Date shall be deemed Disallowed and expunged in its entirety without further order of the Bankruptcy Court or any action being required on the part of the Debtor (until the Effective Date), the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trust (as applicable) unless the Person or entity seeking to file such untimely Claim has received Bankruptcy Court authority to do so.

6.6 Amendments to Claims.

After the Confirmation Date, a Claim for which an applicable Bar Date, if any, has passed may not be filed or amended without the authorization of the Bankruptcy Court. Unless otherwise provided herein, or otherwise consented to by the Debtor (until the Effective Date), the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or Liquidating Trust (as applicable), any Claim or amendment to a Claim filed after the Confirmation Date shall be deemed Disallowed in full and expunged without any action by the Debtor, the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or Liquidating Trust (as applicable) unless the holder of such Claim has obtained Bankruptcy Court authorization for such filing.

6.7 Estimation of Claims.

The Debtor (until the Effective Date), the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trustee (solely as to Class 6 Claims), as applicable, may, at any time, request that the Bankruptcy Court estimate any Claim not expressly Allowed under this Plan and otherwise subject to estimation under section 502(c) of the Bankruptcy Code. The Bankruptcy Court shall retain jurisdiction to estimate any such Claim pursuant to section 502(c). If the Bankruptcy Court estimates any contingent or unliquidated Claim, that estimated amount would constitute either: (a) the Allowed amount of such Claim; or (b) a maximum limitation on such Claim, in which case the Debtor (until the Effective Date), the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trustee (as applicable) may elect to pursue supplemental proceedings to object to the ultimate Allowed amount of such Claim, to be determined by the Bankruptcy Court. Claims may be estimated and subsequently compromised, settled, withdrawn, or resolved by any mechanism approved by the Bankruptcy Court.

6.8 Proposed I M Foundation Settlement.

If the I M Foundation timely accepts this Plan, then the Claims of the I M Foundation against the Debtor and the claims of the Debtor against the I M Foundation shall be resolved as follows: (a) upon the Effective Date, each of I M Foundation and the Debtor shall release each other and each other's respective officers, directors, members, trustees, employees,

advisors, and attorneys, each in its capacity as such, for any and all claims arising prior to the Confirmation Date except for the right to enforce their respective obligations under this Plan; (b) the I M Foundation shall authorize the Reorganized Debtor and DASNY's designee to utilize the portion(s) of parking lots adjacent to the Debtor's Hospital facility at 1545 Atlantic Avenue that are owned by I M Foundation at no cost for so long as the primary use of that facility shall be to provide healthcare services to the surrounding community; and (c) on the Effective Date, the I M Foundation shall donate an amount to be specified in the Plan Supplement to the Covered Persons Fund solely to be used to fund a portion of the amounts available under this Plan to holders of Allowed Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claims in exchange for their release of Covered Person Claims under this Plan. If the I M Foundation does not timely accept the Plan, then all such claims shall remain unresolved.

6.9 Plan as a Settlement.

Pursuant to Bankruptcy Rule 9019 and Bankruptcy Code section 1123, and in consideration for the classifications, distributions, and other benefits provided under this Plan, the provisions of this Plan shall constitute a good faith compromise and settlement of all Claims and controversies resolved pursuant to this Plan whether known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseen, asserted or unasserted, by or against any Released Party or holder of a Claim, arising out of, relating to, or in connection with the business or affairs of or transactions with the Debtor. The entry of the Confirmation Order shall constitute the Bankruptcy Court's approval of each of the foregoing compromises and settlements, and all other compromises and settlements provided for in this Plan, and the Bankruptcy Court's findings shall constitute its determination that such compromises and settlements are in the best interests of the Debtor and its Estate, creditors, and other parties-in-interest, and are fair, equitable and within the range of reasonableness. The provisions of this Plan, including, without limitation, the release, injunction, exculpation, and compromise provisions, are mutually dependent and non-severable.

ARTICLE VII

MEANS OF EXECUTION OF THIS PLAN

7.1 *Corporate Action.*

On the Effective Date, the Debtor shall continue to exist as the Reorganized Debtor, with all of the powers of a non-profit corporation under applicable law. The adoption of any new or amended and restated certificate of incorporation and by-laws and the other action provided for under this Plan for the Debtor or the Reorganized Debtor, as the case may be, shall be deemed to have occurred and be authorized and approved in all respects, without any requirement for further action by trustees of the Debtor or the Reorganized Debtor. The Confirmation Order shall provide that it establishes conclusive authority, and evidence of such authority, required for the Debtor and the Reorganized Debtor to undertake any and all actions required to implement or contemplated by this Plan, including without limitation, appointment of the Liquidating Trustee as selected pursuant to Section 7.4(b). Thus, no Board vote shall be required with respect thereto.

7.2 *Post-Effective Date Board of Trustees.*

As of the Effective Date, the current Board of Trustees of the Debtor shall be dissolved and shall be replaced by New Board members for the Reorganized Debtor who shall be identified in a Plan Supplement filed with the Court for consideration in connection with confirmation of this Plan.

7.3 Post-Effective Date Management.

The Reorganized Debtor's Post-Effective Date Management shall consist of the following:

(a) Temporary Operator.

Commencing on the Effective Date, IMC's new CRO, Melanie Cyganowski, shall be IMC's Temporary Operator. The Temporary Operator shall operate the Reorganized Debtor, including the Hospital and Clinics. On behalf of the Reorganized Debtor, the Temporary Operator shall implement this Plan and the work plan approved by DOH (the "<u>Work Plan</u>"). Pursuant to the Work Plan, the Hospital shall be reorganized. The Work Plan may include the expansion, reduction, restructuring, reorganization, cessation, or transfer of operations and services. The Work Plan shall conform to the goals set forth in New York's Delivery System Reform Incentive Payment ("<u>DSRIP</u>") Plan, which include reducing preventable hospitalizations and emergency department visits while increasing both the quality and delivery of healthcare to patients and their communities. More information is available at

<u>http://www.health.ny.gov/health_care/medicaid/redesign/delivery_system_reform_incentive_pay</u> <u>ment_program.htm</u>.

(b) Post-Effective Date CEO.

On the Effective Date, Steven Korf, shall be the Reorganized Debtor's Chief Executive Officer.

(c) Post Effective Date CFO.

On the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtor's Chief Financial Officer shall be Robert Mariani.

7.4 The Liquidating Trust and Liquidating Trustee

(a) The Liquidating Trust.

As of the Effective Date, the Liquidating Trust shall be established and receive the following IMC assets: (i) \$200,000 in Cash to be paid from funds provided by DASNY to the Debtor from the DIP Facility; (ii) the right to pursue on behalf of the Debtor's Estate the following causes of action of IMC: (A) any causes of action against (1) Kurron Shares of America, Inc., including without limitation, for the return of any prepetition or postpetition fees, not released under the Stipulation and Order, dated May 3, 2013 [Docket No. 446] or (2) any officer of the Debtor, other than Robert Mariani, provided to the Debtor by Kurron Shares of America, Inc., but solely to the extent any such cause of action against any such officer would be satisfied by insurance; (B) any causes of action not released under the Plan identified in the Plan Supplement; and (C) the avoidance actions (i.e., actions under chapter 5 of the Bankruptcy Code) identified in the Plan Supplement; and (iii) reasonable and free use of and access to reasonable space in the Hospital for administrative purposes until March 31, 2015, subject to the ability of the Reorganized Debtor to operate the Hospital and bearing in mind any operations of the Hospital in that space; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that after reasonable notice, the Reorganized Debtor or DASNY's designee (as applicable) shall be able to move or evict the Liquidating Trust from any such space to the extent necessary in the business judgment of the Reorganized Debtor or DASNY's designee (as applicable).

The Liquidating Trust shall be responsible for: (i) liquidation of those assets; (ii) resolution of all Class 6 Claims to be satisfied by the Liquidating Trust; (iii) pursuit of any causes of action assigned to the Liquidating Trust; (iv) making any and all distributions by the Liquidating Trust provided for in this Plan; and (v) the Liquidating Trust's administration and payment of the Liquidating Trustee fees and expenses. The fees and expenses of the Liquidating Trust shall be satisfied solely out of the net proceeds from the Liquidating Trust's assets. Such fees and expenses shall be fully paid or reserved for prior to the Liquidating Trust making Distributions. The Bankruptcy Court shall retain jurisdiction to review such fees and expenses if challenged. Additionally, if Class 6 rejects the Plan, then no Distribution may be made from the Liquidating Trust on Allowed Class 6 Claims unless and until the Disbursement Agent has determined there are sufficient funds otherwise available or reserved under the Plan for all Allowed Administrative Claims and Allowed Claims in Classes 1, 2, and 3. If there are not sufficient funds otherwise available, then any funding available for Distribution from the Liquidating Trust shall be used to satisfy such Allowed Claims.

(b) The Liquidating Trustee.

On the Effective Date, the Liquidating Trustee shall be appointed by the agreement of the Debtor and the Creditor's Committee, or if no agreement is reached, by majority vote of the Debtor, the Committee, and DASNY, with each such entity holding one vote, subject to the approval of the Bankruptcy Court. The Liquidating Trustee shall be bonded in the amount of 150% of Cash in the Liquidating Trust. The Liquidating Trustee shall be entitled to seek such orders, judgments, injunctions, and rulings from the Bankruptcy Court, in addition to those specifically listed herein, as may be necessary to carry out the intentions and purposes, and to give full effect to, the Liquidating Trust Agreement. The Liquidating Trustee shall have the responsibilities specified in this Plan and the Liquidating Trust Agreement. The Bankruptcy Court shall retain jurisdiction to enter orders, judgments, injunctions, and rulings concerning the Liquidating Trust, including in any causes of action the Liquidating Trust may bring or continue. The Liquidating Trust shall pursue those claims, rights, and causes of action assigned to the Liquidating Trust in accordance with the Liquidating Trust's best interests and applicable fiduciary duties.

7.5 The Disbursement Agent.

The Disbursement Agent shall be appointed by DASNY on or before the Effective Date. The Disbursement Agent shall make Distributions on all Allowed Claims,

except Distributions from the Liquidating Trust on Allowed Class 6 Claims, from funds reserved or held in segregated accounts established pursuant to this Plan and perform such other functions as are assigned to the Disbursement Agent pursuant to this Plan.

7.6 Additional Sources of Plan Funding.

In the unlikely event sufficient funding is not otherwise available or reserved for payment in full of any subset of Allowed Administrative Claims or Allowed Claims in Classes 1, 2, and 3 under this Plan, then additional funds for payment of such Allowed Claims shall be available from the following sources in the following order of priority:

- (a) excess funds available or reserved for any other subset of Allowed Administrative Claims or Allowed Claims in Classes 1, 2, or 3;
- (b) net proceeds from any of the Debtor's avoidance actions or other causes of action that are retained by the Reorganized Debtor; and
- (c) if Class 6 rejects this Plan, funds that otherwise would have been available from the Liquidating Trust for Distributions on Allowed Class 6 Claims.

7.7 Use of Restricted Funds.

Notwithstanding any applicable restrictions or limitations established by a grantor or under state law, as of the Effective Date, all restricted funds held by the Debtor (i.e., charitable contributions to IMC or a predecessor as to which the party making the bequest placed a restriction on use related to providing health care services) may be used by the Reorganized Debtor with the sole limitation that such restricted funds may be used solely for the provision of healthcare in IMC's community, and without the necessity for any further notice or approval of the Bankruptcy Court and/or any other court and notwithstanding any applicable state or other statute, case law, or regulation.

7.8 New Bar Dates for Filing Certain Claims.

(a) Fee Claims Filing Deadline.

All applications for payment of Fee Claims that accrued on or before the Confirmation Date must be filed with the Bankruptcy Court by the date that is thirty (30) days after the Effective Date (or, if such date is not a Business Day, by the next Business Day thereafter). Any Person that fails to file such an application on or before such date shall be forever barred from asserting such Claim against the Debtor, the Reorganized Debtor, the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, or the Liquidating Trust (as applicable), or its property and the holder thereof shall be enjoined from commencing or continuing any action, employment of process, or act to collect, offset or recover such Claim.

Requests for payment of Fee Claims incurred after the Confirmation Date may be included in such applications or otherwise be made within a reasonable period after incurrence.

(b) Other Administrative Claims Bar Date.

Requests for payment of Administrative Claims, other than Fee Claims and Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claims, for which a Bar Date was not previously established or established by this Plan must be filed no later than thirty (30) days after service of notice of entry of the Confirmation Order, or such later date as may be established by order of the Bankruptcy Court. Holders of Administrative Claims that do not file such requests by the applicable Bar Date shall be forever barred from asserting such Claims against DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Debtor, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trust (as applicable), any successor thereto, and the holder of any such Claim shall be enjoined from commencing or continuing any action, employment of process or act to collect, offset, or recover any such Administrative Claim.

(c) Extended Bar Date for Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claims Concerning Which Related Covered Person Claims Will Be Released Under This Plan and Bar Date for Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claims.

Each Person that asserts a Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claim or Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claim must file proof of such Claim so that it is actually received by the Debtor's Claims Agent on or before 5:00 p.m. on the date that is ninety (90) days after the Effective Date <u>unless such a proof of claim already was timely filed in the Chapter 11 Case</u>. Each Person that holds such a Claim and who is required, but fails, to file a proof of claim on or before such deadline, shall: (i) be forever barred, estopped, and permanently enjoined from asserting such Claim (or filing a proof of claim with respect thereto); (ii) release any Covered Person, its successors, and properties from any and all indebtedness and/or liability respecting any Covered Person Claim Injunction in Section 9.5(f) of this Plan; (iii) not be permitted to participate in any Distribution under this Plan on account of such Prepetition or Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claim or Covered Person Claim; and (iv) not be entitled to receive any further notice in the Chapter 11 Case regarding such Claim.

(d) Bar Date for Lease and Contract Rejection Claims.

The Bar Date for Claims based on leases and contracts rejected pursuant to this Plan is covered by Section 10.3 of this Plan.

7.9 General Claims Distribution Mechanics.

- (a) <u>Distributions Only on Allowed Claims</u>. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no Distribution shall be made on account of a Disputed Claim until such Disputed Claim becomes an Allowed Claim.
- (b) <u>No Recourse</u>. No Claim holder shall have recourse to the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trust (or any property thereof), other than regarding enforcement of rights or entitlement to Distributions hereunder.

- (c) <u>Method of Cash Distributions</u>. Any Cash payment to be made pursuant to this Plan will be in U.S. dollars and may be made by draft, check, or wire transfer, in the sole discretion of the Disbursement Agent, the Debtor, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trustee (as applicable), or as otherwise required or provided in any relevant agreement or applicable law.
- (d) <u>No Distributions on Non-Business Days</u>. Any payment or Distribution due on a day other than a Business Day may be made, without interest, on the next Business Day.
- (e) <u>No Distribution in Excess of Allowed Amount of Claim</u>. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, no holder of an Allowed Claim shall receive respecting such Claim aggregate Distributions in excess of the Allowed amount of such Claim.
- (f) <u>Disputed Payments</u>. If any dispute arises as to the identity of a holder of an Allowed Claim who is to receive any Distribution, the Debtor, the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trustee (as applicable), may, in lieu of making such Distribution to such Person, make such Distribution into a segregated account until the disposition thereof shall be determined by Court order or by written agreement among the interested parties.
- Unclaimed Property. The Disbursement Agent, the Debtor, DASNY, **(g)** DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trust (as applicable) shall hold any Unclaimed Property (and all interest, dividends, and other distributions thereon), for the benefit of the holder of the Claim entitled thereto under this Plan. At the end of 180 days following the relevant Distribution Date of the applicable Distribution, the holder(s) of Allowed Claims to that point entitled to Unclaimed Property held pursuant to this Plan shall be deemed to have forfeited such property, whereupon all right, title, and interest in and to such property shall immediately and irrevocably be retained by the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trust, as applicable, and such holder(s) shall cease to be entitled thereto. The Disbursement Agent, the Debtor, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trustee (as applicable) shall have no obligation to attempt to locate any holder of an Allowed Claim other than by reviewing the Debtor's books and records, proofs of Claim filed against the Debtor, or relevant registers maintained for such Claims.
- (h) <u>Distribution Minimum</u>. None of the Disbursement Agent, the Debtor, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trust (as applicable) shall be obligated to make a

Distribution of less than \$20.00 in Cash, until the final Distribution on a Claim.

(i) <u>Creditor Information</u>. Each holder of an Allowed Claim shall be required to provide to the Debtor (before the Effective Date) or the Disbursement Agent or Liquidating Trustee (as applicable after the Effective Date) with: (i) written notice of any change of address; and (ii) such holder's federal I.D. number. No Distribution shall be required to be made under this Plan absent receipt by the Debtor, Liquidating Trustee, or Disbursement Agent (as applicable) of such information.

7.10 Withholding Taxes.

Any federal or state withholding taxes or other amounts required to be withheld under any applicable law shall be deducted and withheld from any Distributions. All Persons holding Claims shall be required to provide any information necessary to effect the withholding of such taxes. Notwithstanding any other provision herein, each holder of an Allowed Claim that is to receive a Distribution of Cash as set forth herein shall have the sole and exclusive responsibility for satisfaction and payment of any tax obligations imposed by any governmental unit, including income, withholding, and other tax obligations, on account of such Distribution.

7.11 Exemption from Certain Transfer Taxes.

To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, all sale transactions consummated by the Debtor and approved by the Bankruptcy Court on and after the Confirmation Date through and including the Effective Date, including transfers effectuated hereunder by the sale by the Debtor of any owned property pursuant to section 363(b) or 1123(b)(4) of the Bankruptcy Code, by any assumption, assignment, and/or sale by the Debtor of its interests in unexpired leases of non-residential real property or executory contracts pursuant to section 365(a) of the Bankruptcy Code, and by the creation, modification, consolidation or recording of any mortgage pursuant to the terms hereof or ancillary documents, shall constitute a "transfer under a plan" within the purview of section 1146 of the Bankruptcy Code, and shall not be subject to any stamp, real estate transfer, mortgage recording, or similar tax.

7.12 Setoffs and Recoupments.

The Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trustee (as applicable) may, pursuant to section 553 of the Bankruptcy Code or applicable non-bankruptcy law, set off and/or recoup against any Allowed Claim, and the distributions to be made pursuant to this Plan on account of such Allowed Claim, any and all claims, rights, and causes of action the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trustee (as applicable) may hold against the holder of such Allowed Claim after the Effective Date (with the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trust being able to exchange setoff and/or recoupment rights without prejudice to the Estate's rights of setoff or recoupment). Neither the failure to effect a setoff or recoupment nor the allowance of any Claim under this Plan shall constitute a waiver or release by the Debtor, the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's

designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trust (as applicable) of any and all claims, rights, and causes of action that either may possess against such holder.

7.13 Insurance Preservation and Proceeds.

Nothing contained herein, including any releases, shall diminish or impair the enforceability of any policies of insurance that cover claims against the Debtor or any other Person.

ARTICLE VIII

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

8.1 Conditions Precedent to Confirmation.

Confirmation of this Plan is subject to the following conditions having been satisfied or waived:

- (i) entry of the Confirmation Order, which shall be in form and substance satisfactory to the Debtor and DASNY;
- (ii) availability of and binding commitments to provide funding for consummation of this Plan, including the following:
 - (A) the amounts proposed by DASNY to be provided under the DIP Facility and approved by the Bankruptcy Court to be reserved for payment by the Disbursement Agent of all Allowed Administrative Claims (including Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claims) and all Allowed Claims in each of Classes 1, 2, and 3;
 - (B) the \$200,000 of funding for the Liquidating Trust to be provided by DASNY to the Debtor pursuant to the DIP Facility for transfer to the Liquidating Trust on the Effective Date; and
 - (C) the initial funding for the Reorganized Debtor to be provided by DASNY pursuant to an exit financing facility; and
- (iii) the New Board for the Reorganized Debtor shall have been selected.

8.2 *Conditions Precedent to the Effective Date.*

The occurrence of the Effective Date is subject to the following conditions having been satisfied or waived:

(i) the Confirmation Order in form and substance acceptable to the Debtor and DASNY shall have been entered and shall have become a Final Order;

- (ii) the Debtor shall have received all authorizations, consents, regulatory approvals, rulings, or documents necessary to implement this Plan;
- (iii) either DASNY, on behalf of DASNY's designee, or the Reorganized Debtor (as applicable), and each of the following shall have agreed in writing to resolve, or the Bankruptcy Court shall have resolved, any remaining disputes with and concerning:
 - counterparties as to the terms of material real property leases to be assumed by DASNY's designee or by the Reorganized Debtor;
 - counterparties as to the terms of material executory contracts to be assumed by the Reorganized Debtor;
 - critical vendors as to credit terms for the Reorganized Debtor;
 - the United States Secretary of Health and Human Services, as to the amount of liabilities assumed by the Reorganized Debtor respecting the Debtor's operator agreements;
 - CIR, 1199, NYSNA, and any other counterparty as to the terms of its respective collective bargaining agreement, employee pension and benefit agreements, or other related and analogous agreements;
 - applicable parties respecting each other material matter set forth herein that is to be agreed upon; and
- (iv) all requisite funding then due to the Liquidating Trust, Disbursement Agent, Debtor, or Reorganized Debtor shall have been provided or be the subject of a binding commitment.

8.3 Waiver of Conditions Precedent.

Other than the requirement that the Confirmation Order must be entered, which cannot be waived, the requirement that a particular condition be satisfied may be waived in whole or part by the Debtor, with the prior written consent of DASNY, without notice and a hearing, and the Debtor's benefits under the "mootness doctrine" shall be unaffected by any related provision hereof. The failure to satisfy or waive any condition may be asserted by the Debtor regardless of the circumstances giving rise to the failure of such condition to be satisfied (including, without limitation, any act, action, failure to act or inaction by the Debtor). The failure of the Debtor to assert the non-satisfaction of any such conditions shall not be deemed a waiver of any other rights hereunder, and each such right shall be deemed an ongoing right that may be asserted or waived (as set forth herein) at any time or from time to time.

8.4 Effect of Non-Occurrence of the Conditions Precedent to Confirmation and Effective Date.

If each of the conditions to confirmation of this Plan and occurrence of the Effective Date has not been satisfied or duly waived on or before the first Business Day that is more than 180 days after the Confirmation Date, or by such later date as is proposed by the Debtor, with the consent of DASNY, and, after notice and a hearing, approved by the Bankruptcy Court, upon motion by any party in interest made before the time that each of the conditions has been satisfied or duly waived, the Confirmation Order may be vacated by the Bankruptcy Court; provided, however, that notwithstanding the filing of such a motion, the Confirmation Order shall not be vacated if each of the conditions to consummation is either satisfied or duly waived before the Bankruptcy Court enters an order granting the relief requested in such motion. If the Confirmation Order is vacated, then this Plan shall be null and void in all respects, except for this Section 8.4 and Articles I, XI, and XII hereof, and nothing contained herein shall: (a) constitute a waiver or release of any Claims against the Debtor; or (b) prejudice in any manner the rights of the Debtor.

ARTICLE IX

EFFECTS OF PLAN CONFIRMATION

9.1 Discharge.

(a) Scope.

Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Plan or the Confirmation Order, in accordance with section 1141(d)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code, entry of the Confirmation Order shall act as a discharge, subject to occurrence of the Effective Date, of all debts of, Claims against, and liens on the Debtor, or its assets or properties, which debts, Claims, and liens arose at any time before the entry of the Confirmation Order. The discharge of the Debtor shall be effective as to each Claim, regardless of whether a proof of claim therefor was filed, whether the Claim is an Allowed Claim, or whether the holder thereof votes to accept this Plan. On the Effective Date, as to every discharged Claim, any holder of such Claim shall be precluded from asserting against the Debtor, the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trust, or the assets or properties of the Debtor, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trust (as applicable), any other or further Claim based upon any document, instrument, act, omission, transaction, or other activity of any kind or nature that occurred before the Confirmation Date.

(b) Injunction.

In accordance with section 524 of the Bankruptcy Code, the discharge provided by this section and section 1141 of the Bankruptcy Code will, *inter alia*, act as an injunction against the commencement or continuation of any action, employment of process, or act to collect, offset or recover the debts, Claims, and liens so discharged.

9.2 *Releases of Liens.*

Unless a particular Claim is reinstated: (i) each holder of a Claim that is purportedly secured shall, on or immediately before the Effective Date and as a condition to receiving any Distribution under this Plan: (A) turn over and release to DASNY's designee or the Reorganized Debtor, as applicable, any and all property of the Debtor or the Estate that secures or purportedly secures such Claim; and (B) execute such documents and instruments as DASNY's designee or the Reorganized Debtor, as applicable, requires to evidence such claimant's release of such property; and (ii) on the Effective Date (or such other date described in this subsection), all claims, right, title, and interest in such property shall be assigned or revert to DASNY's designee or the Reorganized Debtor, as applicable, free and clear of all Claims, including (without limitation) liens, claims, charges, pledges, encumbrances, and/or interests of any kind. All liens of the holders of such Claims on property of the Debtor, the Estate, and/or the Reorganized Debtor shall be deemed to be canceled and released as of the Effective Date (or such other date described in this subsection). Notwithstanding the immediately preceding sentence, any such holder of a Disputed Claim shall not be required to execute and deliver such release of liens until ten (10) days after such Claim becomes an Allowed Claim or a Disallowed Claim. To the extent any holder of a Claim fails to release the relevant liens as described above, DASNY's designee or the Reorganized Debtor, as applicable, may act as attorney-in-fact, on behalf of the holder of such liens, to provide any releases required for any purpose.

9.3 Vesting and Either Retention or Assignment of Causes of Action.

Except as otherwise expressly provided for in this Plan or the Confirmation Order, on the Effective Date, all property of the Estate shall either be vested in and: (i) retained by the Reorganized Debtor; or (ii) assigned to the Disbursement Agent, DASNY's designee, or the Liquidating Trust, as applicable, free and clear of all Claims, liens, claims, charges, pledges, encumbrances, and/or interests of any kind of holders of Claims, except for the rights to Distribution afforded to holders of certain Claims under this Plan. After the Effective Date, the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Liquidating Trust, and the Reorganized Debtor shall have no liability to holders of Claims other than as provided for in this Plan or the Confirmation Order.

Except as otherwise provided for in this Plan or the Confirmation Order, or in any contract, instrument, release, or other agreement entered into in connection with this Plan or by order of the Bankruptcy Court, in accordance with section 1123(b) of the Bankruptcy Code, the Debtor shall retain and may enforce any claims, rights, and causes of action the Debtor or the Estate held. Those causes of action shall not include the causes of action to be assigned to the Liquidating Trust pursuant to this Plan.

As of the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtor may operate its business and use and acquire assets, and settle and compromise claims or interests without supervision of the Bankruptcy Court, free of any restrictions of the Bankruptcy Code or Bankruptcy Rules, other than those restrictions expressly imposed by this Plan and/or the Confirmation Order.

9.4 Treatment of Certain Indemnification Obligations.

The obligations of the Debtor to indemnify individuals who now serve or served on or after the Petition Date as its trustees and/or officers, pursuant to the Debtor's operating agreements, certificates of incorporation, by-laws, applicable statutes, or pre-confirmation agreements as well as any order of the Bankruptcy Court, respecting all present and future actions, suits, and proceedings against any of such trustees or officers, based upon any act or omission in such capacity in providing such service with the Debtor on or before the Effective Date, as such obligations were in effect at the time of any such act or omission, shall be performed and honored by the Disbursement Agent from and to the extent of available funds held in a segregated account established solely for such purpose for a period no longer than three years after the Effective Date, up to an aggregate amount of \$1,000,000, regardless of whether the underlying claims for which indemnification is sought are released pursuant to this Plan; provided, however, such indemnification obligations to be performed and honored by the Disbursement Agent shall not include: (a) indemnification Claims based on causes of action assigned to the Liquidating Trust under this Plan, but solely to the extent a Final Order finds the Liquidating Trust is entitled to recovery on such causes of action; (b) indemnification Claims to the extent reimbursed by third party insurance; (c) indemnification Claims to the extent found by a Final Order to be based on Claims that are the result of fraud, gross negligence, or willful misconduct; and (d) indemnification Claims by any individual dismissed for cause from his or her position as a trustee or officer of the Debtor. Any individual who receives reimbursement for indemnification pursuant to this section shall waive any right to assert or receive Distributions in respect of any Administrative Claim or Priority Claim for indemnification: (x) for the same amount(s) paid to such individual pursuant to this section; and (y) based on any prepetition acts or omissions.

9.5 Releases, Injunctions, and Related Provisions.

(a) Satisfaction of Claims.

The treatment provided for Allowed Claims pursuant to this Plan shall be in full and final satisfaction, settlement, release, and discharge of such Claims.

(b) Release of Debtor's Claims Against Released Parties Other Than Claims Based on Fraud, Gross Negligence, or Willful Misconduct, or Against Kurron Shares of America, Inc.

Except as otherwise expressly set forth in this Plan or the Confirmation Order, as of the Effective Date, for good and valuable consideration provided by each of the Released Parties, including good faith settlement and compromise of the claims released by this Plan and the services of the Debtor's officers, directors, trustees, managers, attorneys, and advisors facilitating expeditious implementation of this Plan, the Debtor and debtor in possession and any person seeking to exercise the rights of the Debtor's Estate, including, without limitation, the Liquidating Trustee, the Reorganized Debtor, any successor to the Debtor, or any representative of the Debtor's Estate appointed or selected pursuant to sections 1103, 1104, or 1123(b)(3) of the Bankruptcy Code or under chapter 7 of the Bankruptcy Code, shall be deemed to conclusively, absolutely, unconditionally, irrevocably, and forever release and waive, and shall

be deemed to have provided a full release to each Released Party and its respective property from all claims (as such term "claim" is defined in section 101(5) of the Bankruptcy Code), obligations, debts, suits, judgments, damages, demands, rights, causes of action, remedies and liabilities whatsoever, (other than all rights, remedies, and privileges to enforce this Plan or any agreement entered into in connection with this Plan or regarding claims expressly preserved under this Plan), whether liquidated or unliquidated, fixed or contingent, matured or unmatured, known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseen, existing or hereafter arising, in law, equity or otherwise that are based on, related to, or in any manner arising from, in whole or in part, any act, omission, transaction, event, or other occurrence taking place at any time up to immediately prior to the Effective Date in any way relating to the Debtor, the Reorganized Debtor, the subject matter of, or the transactions or events giving rise to, any Claim that is treated in this Plan, the business or contractual arrangements between the Debtor and any Released Party, the restructuring of Claims prior to or in the Chapter 11 Case, the parties released pursuant to Section 9.5(b) of this Plan, the Chapter 11 Case, this Plan or the Disclosure Statement, or any related contracts, instruments, releases, agreements, or documents, or upon any other act or omission, transaction, agreement, event, or other occurrence taking place on or before the Effective Date, and that could have been asserted by or on behalf of the Debtor, the debtor in possession, or its Estate, or any of its affiliates, whether directly, indirectly, derivatively or in any representative or any other capacity, individually or collectively, in their own right or on behalf of the holder of any Claim or other entity, against any Released Party; provided, however, in no event shall anything described in this Section 9.5(b) be construed as a release of: (i) claims and causes of action based on any Released Party's fraud, gross negligence, or willful misconduct, as determined by a Final Order of the Bankruptcy Court; or (ii) claims or causes of action against: (A) Kurron Shares of America, Inc., including without limitation, for the return of any prepetition or postpetition fees, to the extent not released under the Stipulation and Order, dated May 3, 2013 [Docket No. 446], or any other agreement binding on the Debtor; or (B) any officer of the Debtor, other than Robert Mariani, provided to the Debtor by Kurron Shares of America, Inc., but solely to the extent any such cause of action would be satisfied by insurance.

(c) Releases by Claim Holders.

As of the Effective Date, to the fullest extent permitted by law, each former or current holder of a Claim shall, in consideration for the obligations of the Debtor, Reorganized Debtor, and Liquidating Trustee under this Plan and the distributions, releases, and other agreements or documents to be delivered in connection with this Plan, be deemed to have forever released and waived the Released Parties from all claims, demands, debts, rights, causes of action, remedies or liabilities (other than the right to enforce the Debtor's, the Reorganized Debtor's, or the Liquidating Trustee's obligations under this Plan), whether liquidated or unliquidated, fixed or contingent, matured or unmatured, known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseen, then existing or thereafter arising, in law, equity, or otherwise that are based in whole or in part on any act or omission, transaction, event, or other occurrence taking place on or prior to the Effective Date (including prior to the Petition Date) in any way relating to the Debtor, the Reorganized Debtor, the Chapter 11 Case, this Plan, the Confirmation Order, or the Disclosure Statement, in each case at any time up to immediately prior to the Effective Date; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that such release by Claim holders shall not cover causes of action based on IMC'S inability to fund its obligations under the so-called indemnity letters for medical
malpractice coverage issued pre-petition to Covered Persons, but solely to the extent any such causes of action may be satisfied by insurance.

(d) Releases by and of DASNY.

Except as otherwise expressly set forth in this Plan or the Confirmation Order, as of the Effective Date, DASNY (as DIP Lender and Prepetition Lender), on the one hand, and the Debtor, Reorganized Debtor, and Liquidating Trust, on the other, shall mutually release each other (and each other's respective officers, directors, trustees, employees, members, managers, attorneys, and advisors, each in its capacity as such) from any and all claims and obligations (other than to enforce obligations under this Plan or the Confirmation Order), including, for the avoidance of doubt: (1) any claims by DASNY as DIP Lender for repayment of the DIP Facility; (2) any Challenge (as defined in the DIP Order) respecting prepetition lien and claim matters; (3) any such claim on behalf of the Debtor's Estate that could be asserted by any party-ininterest with standing and requisite authority on behalf of the Debtor's Estate, including, without limitation, the Creditors' Committee; (4) any obligations of DASNY respecting the DIP Financing, including the Carve-Out; and (5) any claims, rights, and causes of action related to the transfer to the Liquidating Trust of control of any of the Debtor's assets.

(e) General Injunction.

Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Plan or Confirmation Order, as of the Effective Date, any Person that held or holds a Claim shall be permanently enjoined from taking any of the following actions against the Debtor, the Ombudsman, the Creditors' Committee or members thereof, DASNY, or present and former directors, officers, trustees, agents, advisors, attorneys, members, or employees of any such entity, each in its capacity as such, or any of their respective successors or assigns, on account of any Claim: (1) commencing or continuing in any manner any action or other proceeding respecting a Claim; (2) enforcing, attaching, collecting, or recovering in any manner any judgment, award, decree, or order respecting a Claim; (3) creating, perfecting, or enforcing any lien or encumbrance respecting a Claim; (4) asserting a setoff, right of subrogation, or recoupment of any kind respecting a Claim, the assets or other property of the Estate; and (5) commencing or continuing any action that does not comply with or is inconsistent with this Plan; provided, however, that nothing in such injunction shall preclude the holder of a Claim from pursuing: (i) third-parties or third-party insurance that does not cover Claims against the Debtor; or (ii) claims or causes of action based on IMC's inability to fund its obligations under so-called indemnity letters for medical malpractice coverage issued pre-petition solely to the extent any such causes of action may be satisfied by insurance.

(f) Covered Person Claims Injunction.

Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Confirmation Order, as of the Effective Date, all Persons shall be permanently enjoined from commencing or continuing any action or proceeding or from enforcing or collecting any judgment or order respecting a Covered Person Claim (i.e. any medical malpractice related claim or action against any Covered Person related to a Prepetition or Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claim); provided however, that such injunction shall not extend to pursuit of or recovery on such claims to the extent of recoveries against any available insurance. Any Covered Person Claim shall be channeled to and (other than recoveries from insurance) receive recoveries solely under the Plan pursuant to Section 4.2 if related to a Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claim or Section 5.6(b) if related to a Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claim. In exchange for this injunction: (i) each Covered Person shall be deemed to waive any Indemnification Claim against the Debtor; and (ii) each Covered Person seeking the benefit of such protection from Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claims shall make, or have made on his or her behalf, an agreed upon financial contribution to the Covered Persons Fund as listed in the Plan Supplement.

(g) Exculpation.

None of the Released Parties shall have or incur any liability to any former or current holder of any Claim or any member of, representative of, or any organization speaking for the Debtor's community for any prepetition or postpetition act or omission in connection with, or arising out of the Debtor's restructuring, including without limitation, the negotiation and execution of this Plan, the Chapter 11 Case, the Disclosure Statement, the dissemination of this Plan, the solicitation of votes for and the pursuit of this Plan, the consummation of this Plan, or the administration of this Plan or the property to be distributed under this Plan, including, without limitation, all documents ancillary thereto, all decisions, actions, inactions, and alleged negligence or misconduct relating thereto and all prepetition or postpetition activities taken or omission in connection with this Plan or the restructuring of the Debtor, except for liability based on fraud, gross negligence, or willful misconduct, each as determined by a Final Order. The Released Parties shall be entitled to rely upon the advice of counsel respecting their duties and responsibilities under this Plan; provided, however, solely to the extent that it would contravene Rule 1.8(h)(1) of the New York Rules of Professional Conduct or any similar ethical rule of another jurisdiction, if binding on an attorney of a Released Party, no attorney of any Released Party shall be released by the Debtor or the Reorganized Debtor.

(h) Injunction Related to Exculpation.

This Plan and the Confirmation Order shall permanently enjoin the commencement or prosecution by any Person, whether directly, derivatively or otherwise, of any Claims, obligations, suits, judgments, damages, demands, debts, rights, causes of action, or liabilities released herein.

9.6 Termination of Services of Patient Care Ombudsman.

On the Effective Date, the Ombudsman shall be released from all further authority, duty, responsibility, and obligation related to the Chapter 11 Case.

9.7 Dissolution of Creditors' Committee

After the Confirmation Date, the Creditors' Committee's duties shall be limited to addressing: (i) any appeal(s) of the Confirmation Order; (ii) objections to Fee Claims; and (iii) monitoring of any matters to be handled by the Liquidating Trust after the Effective Date. On the Effective Date, the Creditors' Committee shall be dissolved and the members of the Creditors' Committee shall be released from all rights and duties arising from or related to the Chapter 11 Case; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that professionals retained by the Creditors' Committee

shall be entitled to reasonable compensation for fees and expenses incurred through the Effective Date, subject to any necessary approval by the Bankruptcy Court.

ARTICLE X

EXECUTORY CONTRACTS AND UNEXPIRED LEASES

10.1 Assumption and Rejection.

Subject to the occurrence of the Effective Date, all of the Debtor's executory contracts and leases not: (a) previously rejected by the Debtor; or (b) designated by DASNY, DASNY's designee, or the Reorganized Debtor as set forth in the Plan Supplement or such other mechanism as is approved by the Bankruptcy Court and assumed by the Debtor, shall be rejected as of the Petition Date or Confirmation Date (as applicable) or such other date designated by DASNY, DASNY's designee, or the Reorganized Debtor (as applicable), with such dates to be specified on or prior to the Effective Date or as otherwise agreed to with the counterparty to such executory contract or lease; provided, however, that the Debtor's collective bargaining agreements with: (i) the New York State Nurses Association; and (ii) 1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East shall not be rejected under this Plan and shall be assumed.

Entry of the Confirmation Order, subject to the occurrence of the Effective Date, shall constitute: (a) the approval, pursuant to sections 365(a) and 1123(b)(2) of the Bankruptcy Code, of the assumption or the assumption and assignment of the executory contracts and unexpired leases assumed or assumed and assigned hereunder; and (b) the approval, pursuant to sections 365(a) and 1123(b)(2), of rejection of the executory contracts and unexpired leases rejected hereunder.

10.2 Cure Matters.

At the election of DASNY, DASNY's designee, or the Reorganized Debtor (as applicable), any monetary defaults under each executory contract and unexpired lease to be assumed hereunder shall be satisfied pursuant to section 365(b)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code, by either: (i) payment of the default amount (the "<u>Cure Amount</u>") in Cash on or as soon as reasonably practicable after the later to occur of (A) thirty (30) days after the determination of the Cure Amount and (B) the Effective Date or such other date as may be set by the Bankruptcy Court; or (ii) satisfaction on such other terms as agreed to by the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor and the non-Debtor party to such executory contract or unexpired lease, subject to the prior written consent of DASNY, DASNY's designee, or the Reorganized Debtor.

In the event of a dispute (each, a "<u>Cure Dispute</u>") regarding: (i) the Cure Amount; (ii) the ability of the Reorganized Debtor or DASNY's designee to provide "adequate assurance of future performance" (within the meaning of section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code) under the contract or lease to be assumed; or (iii) any other matter pertaining to the assumption of an executory contract or unexpired lease, the cure payment required by section 365(b)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code shall be made only following entry of a Final Order resolving the Cure Dispute and approving the assumption of such executory contract or unexpired lease. A Cure Dispute shall not delay the occurrence of the Effective Date.

10.3 Bar Date for Rejection Damages Claims.

Claims arising out of rejection of an executory contract or unexpired lease must be filed with the Bankruptcy Court no later than thirty (30) days after the later of: (a) the Effective Date; or (b) the date of the Debtor's or Reorganized Debtor's, as applicable, notice of determination to reject an executory contract or unexpired lease. Any Claim not filed within such time period shall be forever barred from assertion against the Debtor, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidation Trust, as applicable.

ARTICLE XI

AMENDMENTS TO AND/OR WITHDRAWAL OF THIS PLAN

11.1 *Reservation of Rights.*

The Debtor reserves the right to amend or withdraw this Plan at any time before confirmation.

11.2 Impact of Withdrawal of Plan.

If the Debtor withdraws this Plan, nothing contained herein will be deemed to constitute a waiver or release of any claims by or against the Debtor or any other person, or to prejudice in any manner the rights of the Debtor or of any other person.

ARTICLE XII

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

12.1 Closing of the Chapter 11 Case.

When: (a) all Disputed Claims against the Debtor have become Allowed or have been Disallowed by Final Order; (b) all Distributions have been made pursuant to this Plan; and (c) no contested matter in the Chapter 11 Case remains outstanding, the Reorganized Debtor shall seek authority from the Bankruptcy Court to close the Chapter 11 Case in accordance with the Bankruptcy Code and Bankruptcy Rules.

12.2 Retention of Jurisdiction.

The Bankruptcy Court (and if the Bankruptcy Court cannot or will not adjudicate, the United States District Court for the Eastern District of New York) shall retain exclusive jurisdiction to adjudicate any and all claims or causes or action: (a) against any Released Party; (b) relating to the Debtor, this Plan, the Distributions, the Chapter 11 Case, or any contract, instrument, release, agreement, or document executed and delivered in connection with this Plan; and (c) brought by the Debtor (or any successor thereto, including the Reorganized Debtor), the Liquidating Trustee, or any holder of a Claim regarding such Claim, including, without limitation, any request to enforce releases, exculpations, and/or injunctions provided for in this Plan or Confirmation Order.

12.3 Governing Law.

Except to the extent the Bankruptcy Code, Bankruptcy Rules, or other federal laws apply, the rights and obligations arising hereunder shall be governed by the laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to principles of conflicts of law.

12.4 Severability.

If any provision herein is determined to be unenforceable, such determination shall not limit or affect the enforceability and operative effect of any other provision of this Plan.

12.5 *Time*.

In computing any period of time prescribed or allowed, unless otherwise set forth herein or determined by the Bankruptcy Court, the provisions of Bankruptcy Rule 9006 shall apply.

12.6 Monetary Figures.

All references herein to monetary figures shall refer to legal currency of the United States of America, unless otherwise expressly provided.

12.7 Successors and Assigns.

The rights, benefits, and obligations of any Person named or referred to herein shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of, the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and/or assigns of such Person.

12.8 Controlling Documents.

To the extent this Plan is inconsistent with the Disclosure Statement or any other agreement entered into between the Debtor and any party, this Plan shall control. To the extent this Plan is inconsistent with the Confirmation Order, the Confirmation Order (and any other orders of the Bankruptcy Court) shall control.

12.9 Notices.

All notices or requests in connection with this Plan shall be in writing and will be deemed to have been given when received by mail and addressed to:

(a) if to the Debtor:

Interfaith Medical Center, Inc. 1545 Atlantic Avenue Brooklyn, New York 11213 Attention: Chief Restructuring Officer Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

with copies to:

Willkie Farr & Gallagher LLP 787 Seventh Avenue New York, New York 10019 Attention: Alan J. Lipkin, Esq. Shaunna D. Jones, Esq. Telecopy: (212) 728-8111 E-mail: alipkin@willkie.com sjones@willkie.com

(b) if to DASNY:

Dormitory Authority of the State of New York 515 Broadway Albany, New York 12207 Attention: Larry N. Volk Telecopy: (518) 257-3101 E-mail: lvolk@dasny.org

with copies to:

Winston & Strawn LLP 200 Park Avenue New York, New York 10166 Attention: David Neier, Esq. Carrie V. Hardman, Esq. Telecopy: (212) 294-6700 E-mail : dneier@winston.com chardman@winston.com

(c) if to Committee:

Alston & Bird LLP 90 Park Avenue New York, New York 10016 Attention: Martin G. Bunin, Esq. Craig E. Freeman, Esq. Telecopy: (212) 922-3892 E-mail: marty.bunin@alston.com <u>craig.freeman@alston.com</u>

12.10 Reservation of Rights.

Except as expressly set forth herein, this Plan shall have no force or effect unless and until the Bankruptcy Court enters the Confirmation Order. None of the filing of this Plan, any statement or provision contained herein, or the taking of any action by the Debtor respecting this Plan shall be or shall be deemed to be, an admission or waiver of any rights of the Debtor respecting any Claim or equity interest prior to the Effective Date.

Dated: April 9, 2014

Respectfully submitted,

INTERFAITH MEDICAL CENTER, INC.,

a New York State non-profit corporation

By: /s/ Albert C. Wiltshire

Albert C. Wiltshire Chairman, IMC Board of Trustees

EXHBIIT B

Blackline

UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY C		
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YOR		
In re	·····X	Chapter 11
Interfaith Medical Center, Inc., ¹	:	Case No. 12-48226 (CEC)
Debtor.	:	
	X	

FIRST AMENDED PLAN OF REORGANIZATION FOR INTERFAITH MEDICAL CENTER, INC.

Dated: April 8,9, 2014

WILLKIE FARR & GALLAGHER LLP

787 Seventh Avenue New York, New York 10019-6099 (212) 728-8000

Attorneys for Debtor and Debtor in Possession

¹ The last four digits of the Debtor's federal tax identification number are 6155. The Debtor's mailing address is 1545 Atlantic Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 11213.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

ARTICLE	E I - DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS	1
ARTICLE	E II - GENERAL CLASSIFICATION PROVISIONS	8
2.1	General Rules of Classification.	
2.2	Unclassified Claims.	
ARTICLE	E III - CLASSIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND INTERESTS	
ARTICLE	E IV - TREATMENT OF UNCLASSIFIED CLAIMS	
4.1	Certain Administrative Claims.	
4.2	Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claims	
4.3	Fee Claims.	
4.4	Claims for U.S. Trustee Fees.	
ARTICLE	E V - TREATMENT OF CLASSIFIED CLAIMS	11
5.1	Priority Claims – Class 1.	
5.2	Priority Tax Claims – Class 2.	
5.3	Other Secured Claims – Class 3.	
5.4	DASNY Claims – Class 4.	
5.5	East Building Claims – Class 5.	
5.6	General Unsecured Claims – Class 6.	
5.7	Existing Equity Interests – Class 7.	
ARTICI	E VI - PROVISIONS CONCERNING RESOLUTION OF CLAIMS	14
6.1	Resolution of Medical Malpractice Claims.	
6.2	Mediation.	
6.3	Release of Indemnification Claims Related to Medical Malpractice	15
0.5	Claims.	16
6.4	Objections to Claims.	
6.5	Late Filed Claims	
6.6	Amendments to Claims.	
6.7	Estimation of Claims.	
6.8	Proposed I M Foundation Settlement.	
6.9	Plan as a Settlement.	
	E VII - MEANS OF EXECUTION OF THIS PLAN	10
7.1	Corporate Action.	
7.2	Post-Effective Date Board of Trustees.	
7.3	Post-Effective Date Management.	
7.4	The Liquidating Trust and Liquidating Trustee	
7.5	The Disbursement Agent.	
7.6	Sources and Uses of Plan Funding.	
<u>7.7</u>	Use of Restricted Funds.	<u>20</u> 21

7.7<u>7.8</u>	New Bar Dates for Filing Certain Claims.	
7.8 7.9	General Claims Distribution Mechanics.	
7.9 7.10	Withholding Taxes.	23 24
	1 Exemption from Certain Transfer Taxes.	
	2 Setoffs and Recoupments.	
7.12 7.1	<u>3</u> Insurance Preservation and Proceeds.	<u></u>
	VIII - CONDITIONS PRECEDENT	
8.1	Conditions Precedent to Confirmation.	
8.2	Conditions Precedent to the Effective Date.	
8.3	Waiver of Conditions Precedent.	
8.4	Effect of Non-Occurrence of the	
	Conditions Precedent to Confirmation and Effective Date.	
ARTICLE	IX - EFFECTS OF PLAN CONFIRMATION	2627
9.1	Discharge.	
9.2	Releases of Liens.	
9.3	Vesting and Either Retention or Assignment of Causes of Action.	
9.4	Treatment of Certain Indemnification Obligations.	
9.5	Releases, Injunctions, and Related Provisions.	
9.6	Termination of Services of Patient Care Ombudsman.	
9.7	Dissolution of Creditors' Committee	
ARTICLE	X - EXECUTORY CONTRACTS AND UNEXPIRED LEASES	<u>3233</u>
10.1	Assumption and Rejection.	<u>3233</u>
10.2	Cure Matters.	
10.3	Bar Date for Rejection Damages Claims.	<u>3334</u>
		2224
	XI - AMENDMENTS TO AND/OR WITHDRAWAL OF THIS PLAN	
11.1		
11.2	Impact of Withdrawal of Plan.	<u>33</u> 34
ARTICLE	XII - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	34
12.1	Closing of the Chapter 11 Case.	
12.2	Retention of Jurisdiction.	
12.3	Governing Law.	
12.4	Severability.	
12.5	Time.	0405
12.6	Monetary Figures.	
12.7	Successors and Assigns.	
12.8	Controlling Documents.	
12.9	Notices.	
12.10	Reservation of Rights.	

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS

A. Definitions.

The capitalized terms set forth below shall have the following meanings:

1.1 1545 Atlantic means 1545 Atlantic Development LLC.

1.2 Administrative Claim means a Claim, other than a DASNY Claim for payment of costs or expenses of administration specified in sections 503(b) and 507(a)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code, including, without limitation, the actual and necessary costs and expenses incurred after the Petition Date in operating the business of the Debtor (such as wages, salaries or commissions for services rendered).

1.3 Administrative Claim Bar Date means any deadline for filing proof of a Claim that arose after the Petition Date, as established by an order of the Bankruptcy Court or this Plan, except for any deadline for a Fee Claim or a Claim for Payment of U.S. Trustee Fees.

1.4 Allowed means any Claim against the Debtor that: (a) is not disputed; and (b) (i) is scheduled by the Debtor in its schedule of assets and liabilities pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code and Bankruptcy Rules in a liquidated amount and not listed as contingent, unliquidated, or disputed; (ii) proof of which has been timely filed, or deemed timely filed, with the Bankruptcy Court pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code, the Bankruptcy Rules and/or any applicable orders of the Bankruptcy Court, or late filed with leave of the Bankruptcy Court; and not objected to within any period fixed herein, the Bankruptcy Code, the Bankruptcy Rules and/or applicable orders of the Bankruptcy Court; (iii) has been allowed by an agreement between the holder of such Claim and the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor; or (iv) has otherwise been allowed by a Final Order or pursuant to this Plan. An Allowed Claim: (a) includes a previously Disputed Claim to the extent such Disputed Claim becomes allowed; and (b) shall be net of any setoff or recoupment amount that may be asserted by the Debtor against the holder of such Claim, which shall be deemed to have been setoff or recouped in accordance with the provisions of this Plan.

1.5 Ballot means the ballot, in a form approved by the Bankruptcy Court, distributed to each holder of a Claim eligible to vote on this Plan, on which ballot such holder of a Claim may, <u>inter alia</u>, vote for or against this Plan.

1.6 Bankruptcy Code means title 11 of the United States Code, as now in effect or hereafter amended, as applicable to the Chapter 11 Case.

1.7 Bankruptcy Court means the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Eastern District of New York or any other court exercising competent jurisdiction over the Chapter 11 Case or any matter or proceeding therein.

1.8 Bankruptcy Rules means the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure and the local rules of the Bankruptcy Court (including any applicable local rules of the United States District Court for the Eastern District of New York), as applicable to the Chapter 11 Case.

1.9 Bar Date means any deadline in the Chapter 11 Case for filing proof of a Claim.

1.10 Board means the Debtor's Board of Trustees.

1.11 Business Day means any day except a Saturday, Sunday, or "legal holiday" as such term is defined in Bankruptcy Rule 9006(a).

1.12 Cash means cash and cash equivalents, including, but not limited to, bank deposits, checks, and other similar items of legal tender of the United States of America.

1.13 Chapter 11 Case means the chapter 11 case of the Debtor pending before the Bankruptcy Court.

1.14 Claim means "a claim", as defined by section 101(5) of the Bankruptcy Code, against the Debtor, whether or not asserted.

1.15 Class means a group of Claims classified by this Plan in Article III pursuant to section 1123(a)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code.

1.16 Clinics means the Debtor's ambulatory care network of 8 clinics located in the central Brooklyn communities of Crown Heights and Bedford-Stuyvesant.

1.17 Confirmation Date means the date the Bankruptcy Court enters the Confirmation Order on its docket.

1.18 Confirmation Hearing means the hearing on confirmation of this Plan pursuant to section 1129 of the Bankruptcy Code.

1.19 Confirmation Order means the order of the Bankruptcy Court confirming this Plan in accordance with the Bankruptcy Code.

1.20 Covered Person means a physician, resident, fellow, nurse, or other employee of the Debtor entitled to indemnification by the Debtor for certain medical malpractice claims.

1.21 Covered Person Claim means a medical malpractice claim against a Covered Person that would give rise to an Allowed Indemnification Claim by such Covered Person.

1.22 Covered Persons Fund means the separate fund established for Distributions to holders of certain Covered Person Claims, to be comprised of contributions by or on behalf of Covered Persons.

1.23 Creditors' Committee means the Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors in the Chapter 11 Case as appointed by the United States Trustee.

1.24 CRO means the Debtor's Chief Restructuring Officer.

1.25 Cure Amount shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 10.2 herein.

1.26 Cure Dispute shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section

1.27 DASNY means the Dormitory Authority of the State of New York.

1.28 DASNY Claims means DASNY's Claims based on Prepetition Obligations and pursuant to the DIP Facility.

1.29 Debtor means Interfaith Medical Center, Inc.

10.2 herein.

1.30 DIP Facility means the senior secured priming and superpriority debtor-in-possession credit facility provided to the Debtor pursuant to the Debtor In Possession Credit Agreement, dated as of October 16, 2013, between IMC, as borrower, and DASNY, as the DIP Lender, as modified and amended from time to time.

1.31 DIP Lender means DASNY, in its capacity as DIP Lender.

1.32 DIP Order means the order of the Bankruptcy Court authorizing and approving the DIP Facility, as modified from time to time.

1.33 Disallowed means a Claim or portion thereof found not to be an Allowed Claim in a finding of the Bankruptcy Court in a Final Order or pursuant to a provision of this Plan.

1.34 Disbursement Agent means the Person to be designated by DASNY on or before the Effective Date to: (i) hold the funds that shall be provided by DASNY to the Debtor pursuant to the DIP Facility and otherwise as set forth in this Plan, all of which funds shall be transferred by the Debtor to the Disbursement Agent on the Effective Date for distribution pursuant to this Plan; and (ii) perform such other functions as are assigned to the Disbursement Agent pursuant to this Plan.

1.35 Disclosure Statement means the Disclosure Statement relating to this Plan that is approved by the Bankruptcy Court pursuant to sections 1125 and 1126(b) of the Bankruptcy Code, as such Disclosure Statement may be amended, modified, or supplemented (and all exhibits annexed thereto or referred to therein and all supplements thereto).

1.36 Disputed means respecting a Claim, that portion (including, when appropriate, the whole) of such Claim that is not Allowed or Disallowed.

1.37 Distribution means the distribution, if any, on a Claim in accordance with this Plan.

1.38 Distribution Date means the latest of: (a) the Effective Date (or as soon thereafter as reasonably practicable); (b) the date payment of a Claim ordinarily would be due and payable; or (c) as soon as reasonably practicable after a Claim becomes an Allowed Claim or otherwise becomes entitled to a distribution under this Plan; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that respecting Fee Claims, the Distribution Date is the date (or as soon thereafter as reasonably practicable) that such Claims are allowed by Final Order of the Bankruptcy Court.

1.39 DOH means the New York State Department of Health.

1.40 DSRIP shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 7.3(a).

1.41 East Building Claims means the Claims of 1545 Atlantic based on or related to the two agreements, dated May 17, 2007, between the Debtor and 1545 Atlantic denominated a "Development Lease" and an "Occupancy Lease".

1.42 Effective Date means a Business Day, selected by the Debtor, with the written consent of DASNY, that is after entry of the Confirmation Order and on which all conditions to the Effective Date set forth in Section 8.2 herein have been satisfied or waived.

1.43 Estate means the estate of IMC created in the Chapter 11 Case pursuant to section 541 of the Bankruptcy Code.

1.44 Estimated Fee Claims shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.3 herein.

1.45 Existing Equity means any existing equity interest in the Debtor.

1.46 Fee Claim means a Claim by: (a) a Professional Person for compensation or reimbursement pursuant to section 327, 328, 330, 331, 503(b) or 1103(a) of the Bankruptcy Code in connection with the Chapter 11 Case; (b) a member of the Creditors' Committee arising under section 503(b)(3)(F) of the Bankruptcy Code; (c) the Ombudsman and its counsel; (d) John Leech as CRO; (e) Gordian-Dynamis Solutions LLC; (f) Melanie Cyganowski as CRO; or (g) ToneyKorf LLC.

1.47 Final Order means an order or judgment of the Bankruptcy Court that has not been reversed, stayed, modified, or amended, and for which: (a) the time to appeal, seek review or rehearing, or petition for certiorari has expired; (b) no timely-filed appeal or petition for review, rehearing, remand, or certiorari is pending; and (c) the order has become conclusive of all matters adjudicated and is in full force and effect; provided, however, that the possibility a motion under Rule 59 or Rule 60 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure may be filed respecting such order shall not signify such order is not a Final Order.

1.48 Fund B Loan Agreement means the Reimbursement Agreement between DASNY and IMC, dated as of March 29, 2005, as amended on June 14, 2011, and as further

amended, restated, supplemented, or otherwise modified from time to time, together with all agreements, documents, notes, and instruments in respect thereof.

1.49 General Unsecured Claim means any prepetition Claim asserted by unsecured non-priority creditors and includes any Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claim.

1.50 Hospital refers to the Debtor's main hospital facility, located at 1545 Atlantic Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 11213.

1.51 IMC means Interfaith Medical Center, Inc., the Debtor.

1.52 Impaired means respecting any Claim or Class of Claims, a Claim or Class impaired within the meaning of section 1124 of the Bankruptcy Code.

1.53 Indemnification Claim means a Claim of a Covered Person based on an indemnity obligation of the Debtor.

1.54 Liquidating Trust means the liquidating trust to be established pursuant to the Plan.

1.55 Liquidating Trust Agreement means the liquidating trust agreement governing the Liquidating Trust substantially in the form annexed to the Plan Supplement.

1.56 Mediation Procedures means the procedures set forth in Section 6.2 of this Plan.

1.57 New Board means the board of trustees of the Reorganized Debtor commencing on the Effective Date.

1.58 Ombudsman means the patient care ombudsman appointed in the Chapter 11 Case by the United States Trustee pursuant to 11 U.S.C. § 333(a).

1.59 Other Secured Claim means, other than a DASNY Claim, that portion of a Claim that is secured by a valid, perfected, and enforceable security interest, lien, mortgage, or other encumbrance, that is not subject to avoidance under applicable bankruptcy or non-bankruptcy law, in or upon any right, title, or interest of the Debtor in and to property of the Debtor's Estate, to the extent of the value of the holder's interest in such property as of the relevant determination date.

1.60 Person means any individual, corporation, partnership, association, indenture trustee, organization, joint stock company, joint venture, estate, trust, governmental unit, or any political subdivision thereof, including, for the avoidance of doubt, the Creditors' Committee, current or former employees of the Debtor, or any other individual or entity.

1.61 Petition Date means December 2, 2012.

1.62 Plan means this Plan, dated as of the date set forth on the first page hereof, including all exhibits annexed hereto, either in its present form or as it may be altered, amended, or modified from time to time.

1.63 Pool Loan Agreement means the Reimbursement Agreement between DASNY and IMC, dated as of November 21, 2011, as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, together with all agreements, documents, notes, and instruments in respect thereof.

1.64 Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claim means any medical malpractice Claim asserted on account of or related to the Debtor's purported liability resulting from the provision of or failure to provide medical services after the Petition Date.

1.65 Prepetition Loan Agreement means the Loan Agreement by and between IMC and DASNY, dated as of January 24, 2007, as amended, restated, supplemented, or otherwise modified from time to time, together with all agreements, documents, notes, and instruments in respect thereof.

1.66 Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claim means any medical malpractice Claim asserted on account of or related to the Debtor's purported liability resulting from the provision of or failure to provide medical services prior to the Petition Date.

1.67 Prepetition Obligations means the Debtor's obligations under the Prepetition Loan Agreement, the Fund B Loan Agreement, and the Pool Loan Agreement.

1.68 Prepetition Loan Documents means the Prepetition Loan Agreement, the Fund B Loan Agreement, the Pool Loan Agreement, and all security, pledge, guaranty, and other lien and loan agreements and documents in connection therewith, each as it may have been amended, restated, supplemented, or otherwise modified from time to time.

1.69 Priority Claim means any Claim asserting entitlement to priority in right of payment under section 507(a) of the Bankruptcy Code, other than: (a) an Administrative Claim; (b) a Priority Tax Claim; (c) a DASNY Claim; or (d) a Fee Claim.

1.70 Priority Tax Claim means any Claim asserting entitlement to priority pursuant to section 507(a)(8) of the Bankruptcy Code.

1.71 Pro Rata means the proportion that a Claim in a particular Class bears to the aggregate amount of the Claims in such Class, excluding Disallowed Claims.

1.72 Professional Person means a Person retained by order of the Bankruptcy Court in connection with the Chapter 11 Case, pursuant to section 327, 328, 330, or 1103 of the Bankruptcy Code.

1.73 Released Parties means the Debtor, the Creditors' Committee, the Ombudsman, and DASNY, and any of their current or former agents, representatives, directors, trustees, officers (including, without limitation, for the Debtor, Melanie Cyganowski as CROand, Steven Korf as Chief Executive Officer, and Robert Mariani as Chief Financial Officer), members, sponsors, managers, attorneys, accountants, financial advisors, or other professionals, solely in such capacities.

1.74 Reorganized Debtor means the Debtor on and after the Effective Date.

1.75 Temporary Operator means a temporary operator for the Reorganized Debtor appointed pursuant to New York Public Health Law § 2806-a.

1.76 Unclaimed Property means any Distribution (Cash or otherwise) provided for hereunder that is unclaimed 180 days following the date of such Distribution.

1.77 United States Trustee means the Office of the United States Trustee for the Eastern District of New York.

1.78 Unimpaired means respecting a Claim or Class of Claims, a Claim or Class of Claims that is not Impaired.

1.79 U.S. Trustee Fees means fees arising under 28 U.S.C. § 1930(a)(6) and accrued interest thereon arising under 31 U.S.C. § 3717.

1.80 Work Plan shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 7.3(a).

B. Interpretation; Application of Definitions and Rules of Construction.

Unless otherwise specified, all section or exhibit references are to the respective section in, or exhibit to, this Plan.

As used in this Plan, the words "herein," "hereof," "hereto," "hereunder," and other words of similar import refer to this Plan as a whole and not to any particular section, subsection, or clause of this Plan.

Any capitalized term used herein that is not defined herein shall have the meaning assigned to that term in the Bankruptcy Code or the Bankruptcy Rules.

Except for the rules of construction contained in sections 102(5) of the Bankruptcy Code, which shall not apply, the rules of construction contained in section 102 of the Bankruptcy Code shall apply to the construction of this Plan.

Any reference in this Plan to another agreement or document being in a particular form or on particular terms and conditions means that such document shall be substantially in such form or substantially on such terms and conditions. Any reference herein to an existing document or exhibit filed or to be filed in connection with this Plan or the Disclosure Statement means such document or exhibit as it may have been or may be amended, modified, or supplemented.

The headings used in this Plan are for convenience of reference only and shall not limit or otherwise affect the provisions hereof.

ARTICLE II

GENERAL CLASSIFICATION PROVISIONS

2.1 General Rules of Classification.

A Claim is classified in a particular Class for voting and distribution purposes only to the extent the Claim qualifies within the description of that Class. Unless otherwise provided, to the extent a Claim qualifies for inclusion in a more specifically defined Class and a more generally-defined Class, it shall be included in the more specifically defined Class.

2.2 Unclassified Claims.

The Bankruptcy Code does not require classification of certain claims against a debtor. In this Plan, such unclassified Claims include Administrative Claims (including, among other things, Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claims, Fee Claims, and Claims for U.S. Trustee Fees). Their treatment is set forth in Article IV below.

ARTICLE III

CLASSIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND INTERESTS

The following table designates the Classes of Claims and equity interests under this Plan and specifies which Classes are: (a) Impaired or Unimpaired by this Plan; and (b) entitled to vote to accept or reject this Plan in accordance with section 1126 of the Bankruptcy Code or deemed to accept or reject this Plan:

<u>Class</u>	Designation	<u>Impairment</u>	Entitled to Vote
Class 1	Priority Claims	No	No (Deemed to accept)
Class 2	Priority Tax Claims	No	No (Deemed to accept)
Class 3	Other Secured Claims	No	No (Deemed to accept)
Class 4	DASNY Claims	Yes	Yes
Class 5	East Building Claims	Yes	Yes
Class 6	General Unsecured Claims	Yes	Yes
Class 7	Existing equity interest (if any)	Yes	No (Deemed to reject)

ARTICLE IV

TREATMENT OF UNCLASSIFIED CLAIMS

4.1 *Certain Administrative Claims.*

On the Distribution Date, except to the extent a holder of an Allowed Administrative Claim agrees to different treatment, which treatment shall be acceptable in the sole discretion of the Disbursement Agent, each such Allowed Claim (not including Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claims) shall be paid in full in Cash or otherwise receive treatment consistent with section 1129(a)(9) of the Bankruptcy Code. Nevertheless, Allowed Administrative Claims incurred in the ordinary course of business and on ordinary business terms unrelated to the administration of the Chapter 11 Case (such as Allowed trade and vendor Claims) shall be paid, at the Reorganized Debtor's option, in accordance with ordinary business terms for payment of such Claims.

The amount of funds to be provided by DASNY pursuant to the DIP Facility for payment of all Allowed Administrative Claims shall be determined prior to the Confirmation Date in consultation with DASNY and the Debtor, be included in a Plan Supplement filed with the Court for consideration in connection with confirmation of this Plan, and be binding on all holders of Allowed Administrative Claims. All payments pursuant to this section shall be made by the Disbursement Agent.

4.2 Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claims

Holders of Allowed Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claims not subject to the Election (as described in Section 6.1) shall, in full satisfaction of such Claims as well as any related Covered Persons Claims: (a) receive payment from the Disbursement Agent from: (i) funds provided by DASNY pursuant to the DIP Facility on or prior to the Effective Date; plus (ii) the \$400,000 Indemnity Reserve Fund created by IMC (utilizing DASNY's cash collateral and an I M Foundation contribution), all of which shall be held for Distribution in a segregated account by the Disbursement Agent; or (b) otherwise receive treatment consistent with section 1129(a)(9) of the Bankruptcy Code.

The total amount of funds to be provided by DASNY pursuant to the DIP Facility (together with the Indemnity Reserve Fund) for payment of all such Allowed Claims shall be determined prior to the Confirmation Date in consultation with DASNY and the Debtor, be included in a Plan Supplement filed with the Court for consideration in connection with confirmation of this Plan, and be binding on all holders of Allowed Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claims. Any excess funds in such segregated account after the earlier of: (x) the tenth anniversary of the Effective Date; and (y) the date all such Claims have been resolved and paid, shall be paid to DASNY's designee.

4.3 Fee Claims.

(a) Filing and Payment.

A Fee Claim for which a final fee application has been properly filed and served pursuant to Section 7.7(a) hereof shall be payable by the Disbursement Agent to the extent approved by a Final Order of the Bankruptcy Court.

(b) Estimates and Reserve.

Each holder of a Fee Claim shall be required to submit to the Debtor at least sevenbusiness days prior to the Confirmation Date, an estimate of the portion of its Fee Claim that will have accrued prior to and including the Confirmation Date, but that has not yet been included in a monthly fee statement or interim fee application previously submitted by such holder (collectively, the "Estimated Fee Claims"). On the Confirmation Date, the Debtor shall reserve and hold in an account Cash equal to the aggregate amount as of the Confirmation Date of each unpaid Estimated Fee Claim plus all unpaid amounts or holdbacks from monthly fee statements or interim fee applications (minus any unapplied retainers). All parties entitled to file Fee Claims shall be entitled to reasonable compensation for fees and expenses incurred through the Effective Date, subject to any necessary approval by the Bankruptcy Court. On the Effective Date, such Cash plus an amount equal to the estimated amount of unpaid Fee Claims accrued from the Confirmation Date to the Effective Date as well as the estimated amount of Fee Claims to be incurred after the Effective Date other than for services for the Reorganized Debtor shall be transferred to the Disbursement Agent and maintained in a separate reserve account at a financial institution pending distribution to holders of Allowed Fee Claims. Such Cash shall be disbursed solely to the holders of Allowed Fee Claims as soon as reasonably practicable after a Fee Claim becomes an Allowed Claim. Upon payment of Allowed Fee Claims, any Cash remaining in such account sufficient to satisfy all other unresolved Fee Claims shall be reserved until all Allowed Fee Claims have been paid in full and all remaining Fee Claims have been Disallowed or not otherwise permitted to be paid by Final Order, at which time(s) any remaining Cash held in reserve respecting the Fee Claims shall become the property of DASNY's designee.

(c) Objections.

Objections to Fee Claims, if any, must be filed and served pursuant to the procedures set forth in the Confirmation Order no later than the latest of forty-four (44) days after the Effective Date, 14 days after the date such Fee Claim is filed, or such other date as established by the Bankruptcy Court.

4.4 Claims for U.S. Trustee Fees.

Under this Plan, on the Effective Date or as soon as practicable thereafter, the Disbursement Agent shall pay all U.S. Trustee Fees then due. Any U.S. Trustee Fees due thereafter shall be paid by the Disbursement Agent or the Liquidating Trust (as applicable based on distributions respecting holders of Allowed Claims) until the earlier of the entry of a final decree closing the Chapter 11 Case, or a Bankruptcy Court order converting or dismissing the

case. Any deadline for filing other Administrative Claims or Fee Claims shall not apply to U.S. Trustee Fees.

ARTICLE V

TREATMENT OF CLASSIFIED CLAIMS

5.1 *Priority Claims – Class 1.*

On the Distribution Date, except to the extent a holder of an Allowed Priority Claim agrees to different treatment, which treatment shall be acceptable in the sole discretion of the Disbursement Agent, each such Allowed Claim shall be paid in full in Cash or otherwise receive treatment consistent with the provisions of section 1129(a)(9) of the Bankruptcy Code; provided, however, that any Allowed Priority Claim that is based on any employee's entitlement to paid time off shall be satisfied by the Reorganized Debtor's assumption of the paid time off obligation if such employee is employed by the Reorganized Debtor on the Effective Date.

The amount of funds to be provided by DASNY pursuant to the DIP Facility for payment of all Allowed Priority Claims shall be determined prior to the Confirmation Date in consultation with DASNY and the Debtor, be included in a Plan Supplement filed with the Court for consideration in connection with confirmation of this Plan, and be binding on all holders of Allowed Priority Claims. All payments on Allowed Priority Claims shall be made by the Disbursement Agent.

5.2 Priority Tax Claims – Class 2.

On the Distribution Date, except to the extent a holder of an Allowed Priority Tax Claim agrees to different treatment, which treatment shall be acceptable in the sole discretion of the Disbursement Agent, each holder of such an Allowed Claim shall receive Cash in an amount equal to such Allowed Priority Tax Claim or other treatment consistent with the provisions of section 1129(a)(9) of the Bankruptcy Code.

The amount of funds to be provided by DASNY pursuant to the DIP Facility for payment of all Allowed Priority Tax Claims shall be determined prior to the Confirmation Date in consultation with DASNY and the Debtor, be included in a Plan Supplement filed with the Court for consideration in connection with confirmation of this Plan, and be binding on all holders of Allowed Priority Tax Claims. All payments on Allowed Priority Tax Claims shall be made by the Disbursement Agent.

5.3 Other Secured Claims – Class 3.

On the Distribution Date, except to the extent a holder of an Allowed Other Secured Claim agrees to different treatment, each holder of such an Allowed Claim shall receive: (i) Cash in an amount equal to such Allowed Claim; or (ii) the collateral securing such Allowed Claim. Responsibility for any such payment be shall be, as applicable: (x) DASNY (or the Disbursement Agent) or DASNY's designee (solely respecting Allowed Claims secured by collateral being conveyed to DASNY or its designee pursuant to this Plan); (y) DASNY (or the Disbursement Agent) or the Reorganized Debtor (solely respecting Allowed Claims secured by collateral being retained by the Reorganized Debtor pursuant to this Plan); or (z) the Liquidating Trust (solely respecting Allowed Claims secured by collateral, if any, being conveyed to the Liquidating Trust pursuant to this Plan).

5.4 DASNY Claims – Class 4.

On the Effective Date, in full satisfaction of all of DASNY's Claims, including any DIP Claims, Superpriority Claims, Administrative Claims, Priority Claims, Prepetition Secured Claims, and General Unsecured Claims (except as provided below and in sectionSection 5.6 of this Plan regarding DASNY's Class 6 Claim), the Disbursement Agent, DASNY's designee or the Reorganized Debtor (with DASNY or DASNY's designee determining in its sole discretion which assets shall be retained by the Reorganized Debtor and which assets shall be conveyed free and clear of any liens, claims, charges, pledges, encumbrances, and/or interests of any kind to DASNY's designee) shall receive all assets of the Debtor (except for those assets this Plan or DASNY's designee determines are to be conveyed to the Liquidating Trust or abandoned), including, without limitation: (a) all real property; (b) all real property leases and other executory contracts; (c) all inventory, furniture, fixtures, and equipment; (d) all accounts receivable for Hospital services; (e) any grants or other funding due to the Debtor; (f) all of the Debtor's medical records; provided, however, the Liquidating Trust shall continue to have reasonable access to such records as needed; (g) all Healthfirst equity interests; (h) all funds set aside by the Debtor for the payment of Allowed Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claims; (i) all funds to be deposited in the Covered Persons Fund; and (j) all funds provided to the Debtor pursuant to the DIP Facility; provided, however, that the Debtor's Medicare provider agreements shall be assumed and retained by the Reorganized Debtor. DASNY also shall receive Plan releases as described in Section 9.5(d).

The Allowed Class 4 Claim shall, if necessary, be estimated for voting purposes at an agreed upon amount, but in no event shall such amount be less than the amount of DASNY's postpetition funding of the Debtor pursuant to the DIP Facility, which amount shall be \$45,100,000 plus the amount(s) to be provided pursuant to the DIP Facility in connection with the Effective Date. Additionally, DASNY shall have an Allowed General Unsecured Claim in Class 6 for voting purposes, but DASNY shall not be entitled to any Distribution on that Claim if Class 6 accepts this Plan.

Upon entry of the Confirmation Order, but subject to occurrence of the Effective Date, DASNY shall retain all rights, Claims, and liens available pursuant to the DIP Facility and the Prepetition Loan Documents-except as expressly provided in. For the avoidance of doubt, the prohibitions in Paragraph 20 of the DIP Order concerning the use of proceeds of the DIP Facility, DIP Collateral, Prepetition Collateral, Cash Collateral, or the Carve-Outs (as each such term is defined in the DIP Order) to assert any claims, actions, or causes of action against DASNY shall survive confirmation and consummation of this Plan.

5.5 East Building Claims – Class 5.

(a) Settlement Option.

If 1545 Atlantic accepts the Plan, then upon the Confirmation Date, but subject to the occurrence of the Effective Date, the two agreements, dated May 17, 2004, between the Debtor and 1545 Atlantic denominated a "Development Lease" and an "Occupancy Lease" shall be recharacterized as a single financing agreement for an unsecured loan from 1545 Atlantic to the Debtor, with the Debtor then having title to the related land and improvements known as the "East Building," free and clear of liens, claims, charges, pledges, encumbrances, and/or interests of any kind of 1545 Atlantic, but subject to any valid liens and mortgages of other parties, including DASNY.

In full satisfaction of any Claims of 1545 Atlantic based on those recharacterized agreements, 1545 Atlantic shall receive or retain: (a) the \$4,026,006.28 paid by the Debtor to 1545 Atlantic prepetition; (b) the \$500,000 "security deposit" paid by the Debtor to 1545 Atlantic; (c) the \$300,000 paid by the Debtor to 1545 Atlantic for the postpetition period through March 31, 2014 (or through such later date as such payments are made); (d) \$25,000 per month from Debtor or DASNY's designee (as applicable) for the period April 1, 2014 through March 31, 2015; and (e) an Allowed General Unsecured Claim in Class 6 of \$5,000,000.

(b) Litigation Option.

If 1545 Atlantic rejects the Plan, then 1545 Atlantic's leases shall be either: (i) recharacterized as a disguised financing pursuant to this Plan or, if necessary, pursuant to an adversary proceeding in the Bankruptcy Court; or (ii) rejected pursuant to the Plan and section 365, and notwithstanding section 365(h), the East Building shall be assigned by the Debtor pursuant to section 363(b) and this Plan to DASNY's designee free and clear of liens, claims, charges, pledges, encumbrances, and/or interests of any kind of 1545 Atlantic, but subject to any valid liens and mortgages of other parties, including DASNY. In either case, 1545 Atlantic then shall receive or retain: (v) the \$4,026,006.28 paid by the Debtor to 1545 Atlantic prepetition; (w) the \$500,000 "security deposit" paid by the Debtor to 1545 Atlantic; (x) the \$300,000 paid by the Debtor to 1545 Atlantic for the postpetition period through March 31, 2014 (or through such later date as such payments are made); (y) payment(s) in amounts and at times determined by the Bankruptcy Court to be payable to 1545 Atlantic as adequate protection for any leasehold interest or respecting its rights under its subordination agreement with DASNY; and (z) an allowed General Unsecured Claim in Class 6 in an amount to be determined by the Bankruptcy Court.

5.6 General Unsecured Claims – Class 6.

(a) **Provisions Governing All Class 6 Claims**

All Holders of Allowed General Unsecured Claims shall receive Pro Rata Distributions from all funds available from the Liquidating Trust after satisfaction of its fees, expenses, and other liabilities. Certain Allowed Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claims also shall receive the additional treatment discussed below.

Class 6 is entitled to vote. DASNY's Class 6 Claim shall be estimated for voting purposes at an agreed upon amount equal to DASNY's deficiency Claims plus its unsecured Claims, but in no event shall such amount be less than \$100,000,000, with DASNY waiving any Distribution on such Allowed Class 6 Claim if Class 6 accepts this Plan.

(b) Covered Person Claims, i.e., Claims Against Covered Persons Related to Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claims.

A holder of an Allowed Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claim shall be treated as a holder of an Allowed Class 6 Claim and to the extent such holder is also: (i) a holder of a Covered Person Claim that: (A) would give rise to an Allowed Indemnification Claim by such Covered Person; and (B) is not covered by third party insurance; and (ii) does not make the Election as described in Section 6.1 of this Plan, shall also receive a Pro Rata Distribution by the Disbursement Agent from the Covered Persons Fund up to maximum amount per Allowed Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claim to be included in the Plan Supplement.

The amount and sources of funds to be provided for the Covered Persons Fund shall be determined prior to the Confirmation Date in consultation with DASNY and the Debtor, be included in a Plan Supplement filed with the Court for consideration in connection with confirmation of this Plan, and be binding on all holders of Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claims and all Covered Persons. All payments from the Covered Persons Fund shall be made by the Disbursement Agent.

5.7 Existing Equity Interests – Class 7.

Plan.

Existing equity interests shall not receive or retain any distribution under this

ARTICLE VI

PROVISIONS CONCERNING RESOLUTION OF CLAIMS

6.1 *Resolution of Medical Malpractice Claims.*

(a) Election.

No later than 90 days after the Effective Date, each holder of a Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claim or a Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claim for which a proof of claim was timely filed (or deemed timely filed) may make the Election to be granted relief from the automatic stay to litigate such holder's Claim in state court provided that if such Election is made, then: (i) any recovery on such Claim shall be limited to available third party insurance, if any; (ii) such holder shall not otherwise receive a Distribution hereunder or any payments based on any related Covered Person Claim; and (iii) such holder shall thereby release each Covered Person from any liability on a related Covered Person Claim except to the extent of available third party insurance (i.e., insurance held by a Covered Person) respecting such Covered Person.

(b) No Election.

If a holder of a Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claim or a Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claim for which a proof of claim was timely filed (or deemed timely filed) does not make the Election on or before 90 days after the Effective Date, then such Claim shall be submitted for resolution through mediation, pursuant to the Mediation Procedures in Section 6.2

of this Plan. If mediation does not resolve such Claim, then such Claim shall be estimated pursuant to section 502(c) of the Bankruptcy Code together with any indemnification, vicarious, or other liability asserted against the Debtor related to such Claim respecting any Covered Person; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that the holder of such Claim may affirmatively opt out from having its Claim so estimated by filing with the Bankruptcy Court an opt out request within 90 days of the Effective Date.

6.2 Mediation.

(a) Selection of Mediator.

The Disbursement Agent shall select the mediator (the "<u>Postpetition Mediator</u>") for each Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claim. Upon a determination there will be sufficient funds available for Distributions on Allowed Class 6 Claims to warrant mediation and that each applicable Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claim cannot be settled at that time without mediation, the Liquidating Trustee shall select a mediator or mediators (the "<u>Class 6 Mediator</u>," and together with the Postpetition Mediator, the "<u>Mediator</u>") without further other of the Court.

(b) Costs.

Each Mediator shall charge its standard hourly rate for services of this kind. The Mediator's fees and expenses incurred in connection with each mediation session shall be the joint responsibility of (i) the Liquidating Trust or the Disbursement Agent, as applicable, and (ii) the applicable Claim holder. If the (i) Liquidating Trust or the Disbursement Agent, as applicable, or (ii) any Claim holder fails to appear for a scheduled mediation session without giving five (5) days written notice, the party failing to appear shall be responsible for 100% of the costs for that mediation session, including attorneys' fees, if any.

(c) Mediation Procedures.

The Mediator shall have the duty and authority to establish reasonable and practical mediation procedures and shall have sole authority to set the date, time, and location of mediation sessions for each Claim subject to mediation. The Mediator, with the consent of the Liquidating Trustee or the Disbursement Agent, as applicable, shall select the order in which Claims will be presented to the Mediator. For the avoidance of doubt, nothing shall preclude the Liquidating Trustee or the Disbursement Agent, as applicable, from attempting to resolve a Claim outside of a mediation session (including, without limitation, by the Disbursement Agent offering a settlement payment).

(d) Notice.

As soon as practicable after the selection of the Mediator for a particular Claim, the Mediator shall serve notice on the holder of the Claim subject to mediation and the Liquidating Trustee or the Disbursement Agent, as applicable, advising that such Claim is subject to mediation. The notice shall contain procedures applicable to the mediation sessions, including timing for submission of documents or statements by the parties. After such service, the Mediator shall confer with each Claim holder and the Liquidating Trustee or the Disbursement Agent, as applicable, and/or their respective representatives to schedule mediation sessions. Once mediation sessions are scheduled by the Mediator (in its sole discretion), the Mediator shall serve notice of the date, time, and location of mediation sessions on the applicable Claim holder and the Liquidating Trustee or the Disbursement Agent, as applicable.

(e) Mediation Sessions.

Any party may be represented at a mediation session by legal counsel at such party's cost and expense, although legal counsel shall not be required for mediation. The Mediator shall meet with the parties or their representatives, individually and jointly, for a conference or series of conferences, as determined by the Mediator. The Mediator shall report any willful failure to attend or participate in good faith in the mediation sessions to the Bankruptcy Court, which may result in the imposition of sanctions by the Bankruptcy Court. The Mediator shall have no obligation to make written comments or recommendations regarding settlement.

(f) Settlements.

A Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claim resolved pursuant to mediation shall be treated as an Allowed Class 6 Claim pursuant to Section 5.6 of this Plan. A Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claim resolved pursuant to mediation shall be satisfied as set forth in Section 4.2 of this Plan.

(g) Confidentiality.

Any statements made by the Mediator, any Claim holder, the Reorganized Debtor, the Liquidating Trustee, the Disbursement Agent, any Covered Person, their respective representatives, or any other Person during the Mediation process shall not be divulged to the Court or any third party. Any reports, records, or other documents received or made by the Mediator shall be confidential. The Mediator shall not be compelled to divulge such records or testify in regard to the Mediation in connection with any other proceeding.

6.3 Release of Indemnification Claims Related to Medical Malpractice Claims.

Each holder of an Allowed Indemnification Claim concerning a Prepetition or Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claim shall be deemed to have waived and released any such Indemnification Claim in exchange for the benefit of the Covered Person Claims Injunction in Section 9.5(f) of this Plan.

6.4 *Objections to Claims.*

Unless otherwise ordered by the Bankruptcy Court, objections to Claims shall be filed and served on the applicable holder of any such Claim not later than 180 days after the later to occur of: (a) the Effective Date; and (b) the filing of the relevant Claim. Such time period may be extended by the Bankruptcy Court.

After the Confirmation Date, only DASNY, the Disbursement Agent, DASNY's designee, the Debtor (only to the Effective Date), and the Reorganized Debtor shall have the authority to file, settle, withdraw, or litigate to judgment objections to Claims, except that after

the Effective Date, the Liquidating Trust will have such authority as to Class 6 Claims. From and after the Effective Date, only the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trustee (as applicable) may settle any Disputed Claim without Bankruptcy Court approval.

6.5 Late Filed Claims

A Claim filed after any applicable Bar Date shall be deemed Disallowed and expunged in its entirety without further order of the Bankruptcy Court or any action being required on the part of the Debtor (until the Effective Date), the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trust (as applicable) unless the Person or entity seeking to file such untimely Claim has received Bankruptcy Court authority to do so.

6.6 Amendments to Claims.

After the Confirmation Date, a Claim for which an applicable Bar Date, if any, has passed may not be filed or amended without the authorization of the Bankruptcy Court. Unless otherwise provided herein, or otherwise consented to by the Debtor (until the Effective Date), the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or Liquidating Trust (as applicable), any Claim or amendment to a Claim filed after the Confirmation Date shall be deemed Disallowed in full and expunged without any action by the Debtor, the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or Liquidating Trust (as applicable) unless the holder of such Claim has obtained Bankruptcy Court authorization for such filing.

6.7 Estimation of Claims.

The Debtor (until the Effective Date), the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trustee (solely as to Class 6 Claims), as applicable, may, at any time, request that the Bankruptcy Court estimate any Claim not expressly Allowed under this Plan and otherwise subject to estimation under section 502(c) of the Bankruptcy Code. The Bankruptcy Court shall retain jurisdiction to estimate any such Claim pursuant to section 502(c). If the Bankruptcy Court estimates any contingent or unliquidated Claim, that estimated amount would constitute either: (a) the Allowed amount of such Claim; or (b) a maximum limitation on such Claim, in which case the Debtor (until the Effective Date), the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trustee (as applicable) may elect to pursue supplemental proceedings to object to the ultimate Allowed amount of such Claim, to be determined by the Bankruptcy Court. Claims may be estimated and subsequently compromised, settled, withdrawn, or resolved by any mechanism approved by the Bankruptcy Court.

6.8 Proposed I M Foundation Settlement.

If the I M Foundation timely accepts this Plan, then the Claims of the I M Foundation against the Debtor and the claims of the Debtor against the I M Foundation shall be resolved as follows: (a) upon the Effective Date, each of I M Foundation and the Debtor shall release each other and each other's respective officers, directors, members, trustees, employees,

advisors, and attorneys, each in its capacity as such, for any and all claims arising prior to the Confirmation Date except for the right to enforce their respective obligations under this Plan; (b) the I M Foundation shall authorize the Reorganized Debtor and DASNY's designee to utilize the portion(s) of parking lots adjacent to the Debtor's Hospital facility at 1545 Atlantic Avenue that are owned by I M Foundation at no cost for so long as the primary use of that facility shall be to provide healthcare services to the surrounding community; and (c) on the Effective Date, the I M Foundation shall donate **S**[______]an amount to be specified in the Plan Supplement to the Covered Persons Fund solely to be used to fund a portion of the amounts available under this Plan to holders of Allowed Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claims in exchange for their release of Covered Person Claims under this Plan. If the I M Foundation does not timely accept the Plan, then all such claims shall remain unresolved.

6.9 Plan as a Settlement.

Pursuant to Bankruptcy Rule 9019 and Bankruptcy Code section 1123, and in consideration for the classifications, distributions, and other benefits provided under this Plan, the provisions of this Plan shall constitute a good faith compromise and settlement of all Claims and controversies resolved pursuant to this Plan whether known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseen, asserted or unasserted, by or against any Released Party or holder of a Claim, arising out of, relating to, or in connection with the business or affairs of or transactions with the Debtor. The entry of the Confirmation Order shall constitute the Bankruptcy Court's approval of each of the foregoing compromises and settlements, and all other compromises and settlements provided for in this Plan, and the Bankruptcy Court's findings shall constitute its determination that such compromises and settlements are in the best interests of the Debtor and its Estate, creditors, and other parties-in-interest, and are fair, equitable and within the range of reasonableness. The provisions of this Plan, including, without limitation, the release, injunction, exculpation, and compromise provisions, are mutually dependent and non-severable.

ARTICLE VII

MEANS OF EXECUTION OF THIS PLAN

7.1 Corporate Action.

On the Effective Date, the Debtor shall continue to exist as the Reorganized Debtor, with all of the powers of a non-profit corporation under applicable law. The adoption of any new or amended and restated certificate of incorporation and by-laws and the other action provided for under this Plan for the Debtor or the Reorganized Debtor, as the case may be, shall be deemed to have occurred and be authorized and approved in all respects, without any requirement for further action by trustees of the Debtor or the Reorganized Debtor. The Confirmation Order shall provide that it establishes conclusive authority, and evidence of such authority, required for the Debtor and the Reorganized Debtor to undertake any and all actions required to implement or contemplated by this Plan, including without limitation, appointment of the Liquidating Trustee as selected pursuant to Section 7.4(b). Thus, no Board vote shall be required with respect thereto.

7.2 Post-Effective Date Board of Trustees.

As of the Effective Date, the current Board of Trustees of the Debtor shall be dissolved and shall be replaced by New Board members for the Reorganized Debtor who shall be identified in a Plan Supplement filed with the Court for consideration in connection with confirmation of this Plan.

7.3 Post-Effective Date Management.

The Reorganized Debtor's Post-Effective Date Management shall consist of the following:

Temporary Operator. (a)

Commencing on the Effective Date, IMC's new CRO, Melanie Cyganowski, shall be IMC's Temporary Operator. The Temporary Operator shall operate the Reorganized Debtor, including the Hospital and Clinics. On behalf of the Reorganized Debtor, the Temporary Operator shall implement this Plan and the work plan approved by DOH (the "Work Plan"). Pursuant to the Work Plan, the Hospital shall be reorganized. The Work Plan may include the expansion, reduction, restructuring, reorganization, cessation, or transfer of operations and services. The Work Plan shall conform to the goals set forth in New York's Delivery System Reform Incentive Payment ("DSRIP") Plan, which include reducing preventable hospitalizations and emergency department visits while increasing both the quality and delivery of healthcare to patients and their communities. More information is available at

http://www.health.ny.gov/health_care/medicaid/redesign/delivery_system_reform_incentive_pay ment_program.htm.

Post-Effective Date CEO. (b)

On the Effective Date, Steven Korf, shall be the Reorganized Debtor's Chief Executive Officer.

Post Effective Date CFO. (c)

On the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtor's Chief Financial Officer shall be Robert Mariani.

7.4 The Liquidating Trust and Liquidating Trustee

The Liquidating Trust. (a)

As of the Effective Date, the Liquidating Trust shall be established and receive the following IMC assets: (i) \$200,000 in Cash to be paid from funds provided by DASNY to the Debtor from the DIP Facility; (ii) the right to pursue on behalf of the Debtor's Estate the following causes of action of IMC: (A) any causes of action against (1) Kurron Shares of America, Inc., including without limitation, for the return of any prepetition or postpetition fees, not released under the Stipulation and Order, dated May 3, 2013 [Docket No. 446] or (2) any officer of the Debtor, other than Robert Mariani, provided to the Debtor by Kurron Shares of

America, Inc., but solely to the extent any such cause of action against any such officer would be satisfied by insurance; (B) any causes of action not released under the Plan identified in the Plan Supplement; and (C) the avoidance actions (i.e., actions under chapter 5 of the Bankruptcy Code) identified in the Plan Supplement; and (iii) reasonable and free use of and access to reasonable space in the Hospital for administrative purposes until March 31, 2015, subject to the ability of the Reorganized Debtor to operate the Hospital and bearing in mind any operations of the Hospital in that space; provided, however, that after reasonable notice, the Reorganized Debtor or DASNY's designee (as applicable) shall be able to move or evict the Liquidating Trust from any such space to the extent necessary in the business judgment of the Reorganized Debtor or DASNY's designee (as applicable).

The Liquidating Trust shall be responsible for: (i) liquidation of those assets; (ii) resolution of all Class 6 Claims to be satisfied by the Liquidating Trust; (iii) pursuit of any causes of action assigned to the Liquidating Trust; (iv) making any and all distributions by the Liquidating Trust provided for in this Plan; and (v) the Liquidating Trust's administration and payment of the Liquidating Trustee fees and expenses. The fees and expenses of the Liquidating Trust shall be satisfied solely out of the net proceeds from the Liquidating Trust's assets. Such fees and expenses shall be fully paid or reserved for prior to the Liquidating Trust making Distributions. The Bankruptcy Court shall retain jurisdiction to review such fees and expenses if challenged. Additionally, if Class 6 rejects the Plan, then no Distribution may be made from the Liquidating Trust on Allowed Class 6 Claims unless and until the Disbursement Agent has determined there are sufficient funds otherwise available or reserved under the Plan for all Allowed Administrative Claims and Allowed Claims in Classes 1, 2, and 3. If there are not sufficient funds otherwise available, then any funding available for Distribution from the Liquidating Trust shall be used to satisfy such Allowed Claims.

(b) The Liquidating Trustee.

On the Effective Date, the Liquidating Trustee shall be appointed by the agreement of the Debtor and the Creditor's Committee, or if no agreement is reached, by majority vote of the Debtor, the Committee, and DASNY, with each such entity holding one vote, subject to the approval of the Bankruptcy Court. The Liquidating Trustee shall be bonded in the amount of 150% of Cash in the Liquidating Trust. The Liquidating Trustee shall be entitled to seek such orders, judgments, injunctions, and rulings from the Bankruptcy Court, in addition to those specifically listed herein, as may be necessary to carry out the intentions and purposes, and to give full effect to, the Liquidating Trust Agreement. The Liquidating Trustee shall have the responsibilities specified in this Plan and the Liquidating Trust Agreement. The Bankruptcy Court shall retain jurisdiction to enter orders, judgments, injunctions, and rulings concerning the Liquidating Trust, including in any causes of action the Liquidating Trust may bring or continue. The Liquidating Trust shall pursue those claims, rights, and causes of action assigned to the Liquidating Trust in accordance with the Liquidating Trust's best interests and applicable fiduciary duties.

7.5 The Disbursement Agent.

The Disbursement Agent shall be appointed by DASNY on or before the Effective Date. The Disbursement Agent shall make Distributions on all Allowed Claims, except

Distributions from the Liquidating Trust on Allowed Class 6 Claims, from funds reserved or held in segregated accounts established pursuant to this Plan and perform such other functions as are assigned to the Disbursement Agent pursuant to this Plan.

7.6 Additional Sources of Plan Funding.

In the unlikely event sufficient funding is not otherwise available or reserved for payment in full of any subset of Allowed Administrative Claims or Allowed Claims in Classes 1, 2, and 3 under this Plan, then additional funds for payment of such Allowed Claims shall be available from the following sources in the following order of priority:

- (a) excess funds available or reserved for any other subset of Allowed Administrative Claims or Allowed Claims in Classes 1, 2, or 3;
- (b) net proceeds from any of the Debtor's avoidance actions or other causes of action that are retained by the Reorganized Debtor; and
- (c) if Class 6 rejects this Plan, funds that otherwise would have been available from the Liquidating Trust for Distributions on Allowed Class 6 Claims.

7.7 7.6-Use of Restricted Funds.

Notwithstanding any applicable restrictions or limitations established by a grantor or under state law, as of the Effective Date, all restricted funds held by the Debtor (i.e., charitable contributions to IMC or a predecessor as to which the party making the bequest placed a restriction on use related to providing health care services) may be used by the Reorganized Debtor with the sole limitation that such restricted funds may be used solely for the provision of healthcare in IMC's community, and without the necessity for any further notice or approval of the Bankruptcy Court and/or any other court and notwithstanding any applicable state or other statute, case law, or regulation.

7.8 7.7 New Bar Dates for Filing Certain Claims.

(a) Fee Claims Filing Deadline.

All applications for payment of Fee Claims that accrued on or before the Confirmation Date must be filed with the Bankruptcy Court by the date that is thirty (30) days after the Effective Date (or, if such date is not a Business Day, by the next Business Day thereafter). Any Person that fails to file such an application on or before such date shall be forever barred from asserting such Claim against the Debtor, the Reorganized Debtor, the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, or the Liquidating Trust (as applicable), or its property and the holder thereof shall be enjoined from commencing or continuing any action, employment of process, or act to collect, offset or recover such Claim.

Requests for payment of Fee Claims incurred after the Confirmation Date may be included in such applications or otherwise be made within a reasonable period after incurrence.

(b) Other Administrative Claims Bar Date.

Requests for payment of Administrative Claims, other than Fee Claims and Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claims, for which a Bar Date was not previously established or established by this Plan must be filed no later than thirty (30) days after service of notice of entry of the Confirmation Order, or such later date as may be established by order of the Bankruptcy Court. Holders of Administrative Claims that do not file such requests by the applicable Bar Date shall be forever barred from asserting such Claims against DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Debtor, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trust (as applicable), any successor thereto, and the holder of any such Claim shall be enjoined from commencing or continuing any action, employment of process or act to collect, offset, or recover any such Administrative Claim.

(c) Extended Bar Date for Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claims Concerning Which Related Covered Person Claims Will Be Released Under This Plan and Bar Date for Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claims.

[Each Person that asserts a Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claim or Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claim must file proof of such Claim so that it is actually received by the Debtor's Claims Agent on or before 5:00 p.m. on the date that is ninety (90) days after the Effective Date unless such a proof of claim already was timely filed in the Chapter 11 Case. Each Person that holds such a Claim and who is required, but fails, to file a proof of claim on or before such deadline, shall: (i) be forever barred, estopped, and permanently enjoined from asserting such Claim (or filing a proof of claim with respect thereto); (ii) release any Covered Person, its successors, and properties from any and all indebtedness and/or liability respecting any Covered Person Claim Injunction in Section 9.5(f) of this Plan; (iii) not be permitted to participate in any Distribution under this Plan on account of such Prepetition or Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claim or Covered Person Claim; and (iv) not be entitled to receive any further notice in the Chapter 11 Case regarding such Claim.]

(d) Bar Date for Lease and Contract Rejection Claims.

The Bar Date for Claims based on leases and contracts rejected pursuant to this Plan is covered by Section 10.3 of this Plan.

7.9 7.8-General Claims Distribution Mechanics.

- (a) <u>Distributions Only on Allowed Claims</u>. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no Distribution shall be made on account of a Disputed Claim until such Disputed Claim becomes an Allowed Claim.
- (b) <u>No Recourse</u>. No Claim holder shall have recourse to the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trust (or any property thereof), other than regarding enforcement of rights or entitlement to Distributions hereunder.

- (c) <u>Method of Cash Distributions</u>. Any Cash payment to be made pursuant to this Plan will be in U.S. dollars and may be made by draft, check, or wire transfer, in the sole discretion of the Disbursement Agent, the Debtor, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trustee (as applicable), or as otherwise required or provided in any relevant agreement or applicable law.
- (d) <u>No Distributions on Non-Business Days</u>. Any payment or Distribution due on a day other than a Business Day may be made, without interest, on the next Business Day.
- (e) No Distribution in Excess of Allowed Amount of Claim. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, no holder of an Allowed Claim shall receive respecting such Claim aggregate Distributions in excess of the Allowed amount of such Claim.
- (f) Disputed Payments. If any dispute arises as to the identity of a holder of an Allowed Claim who is to receive any Distribution, the Debtor, the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trustee (as applicable), may, in lieu of making such Distribution to such Person, make such Distribution into a segregated account until the disposition thereof shall be determined by Court order or by written agreement among the interested parties.
- Unclaimed Property. The Disbursement Agent, the Debtor, DASNY, (g) DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trust (as applicable) shall hold any Unclaimed Property (and all interest, dividends, and other distributions thereon), for the benefit of the holder of the Claim entitled thereto under this Plan. At the end of 180 days following the relevant Distribution Date of the applicable Distribution, the holder(s) of Allowed Claims to that point entitled to Unclaimed Property held pursuant to this Plan shall be deemed to have forfeited such property, whereupon all right, title, and interest in and to such property shall immediately and irrevocably be retained by the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trust, as applicable, and such holder(s) shall cease to be entitled thereto. The Disbursement Agent, the Debtor, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trustee (as applicable) shall have no obligation to attempt to locate any holder of an Allowed Claim other than by reviewing the Debtor's books and records, proofs of Claim filed against the Debtor, or relevant registers maintained for such Claims.
- (h) <u>Distribution Minimum</u>. None of the Disbursement Agent, the Debtor, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trust (as applicable) shall be obligated to make a

Distribution of less than \$20.00 in Cash, until the final Distribution on a Claim.

(i) <u>Creditor Information</u>. Each holder of an Allowed Claim shall be required to provide to the Debtor (before the Effective Date) or the Disbursement Agent or Liquidating Trustee (as applicable after the Effective Date) with: (i) written notice of any change of address; and (ii) such holder's federal I.D. number. No Distribution shall be required to be made under this Plan absent receipt by the Debtor, Liquidating Trustee, or Disbursement Agent (as applicable) of such information.

<u>7.10</u> 7.9 *Withholding Taxes.*

Any federal or state withholding taxes or other amounts required to be withheld under any applicable law shall be deducted and withheld from any Distributions. All Persons holding Claims shall be required to provide any information necessary to effect the withholding of such taxes. Notwithstanding any other provision herein, each holder of an Allowed Claim that is to receive a Distribution of Cash as set forth herein shall have the sole and exclusive responsibility for satisfaction and payment of any tax obligations imposed by any governmental unit, including income, withholding, and other tax obligations, on account of such Distribution.

7.11 7.10 *Exemption from Certain Transfer Taxes.*

To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, all sale transactions consummated by the Debtor and approved by the Bankruptcy Court on and after the Confirmation Date through and including the Effective Date, including transfers effectuated hereunder by the sale by the Debtor of any owned property pursuant to section 363(b) or 1123(b)(4) of the Bankruptcy Code, by any assumption, assignment, and/or sale by the Debtor of its interests in unexpired leases of non-residential real property or executory contracts pursuant to section 365(a) of the Bankruptcy Code, and by the creation, modification, consolidation or recording of any mortgage pursuant to the terms hereof or ancillary documents, shall constitute a "transfer under a plan" within the purview of section 1146 of the Bankruptcy Code, and shall not be subject to any stamp, real estate transfer, mortgage recording, or similar tax.

<u>7.12</u> 7.11 Setoffs and Recoupments.

The Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trustee (as applicable) may, pursuant to section 553 of the Bankruptcy Code or applicable non-bankruptcy law, set off and/or recoup against any Allowed Claim, and the distributions to be made pursuant to this Plan on account of such Allowed Claim, any and all claims, rights, and causes of action the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trustee (as applicable) may hold against the holder of such Allowed Claim after the Effective Date (with the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trust being able to exchange setoff and/or recoupment rights without prejudice to the Estate's rights of setoff or recoupment). Neither the failure to effect a setoff or recoupment nor the allowance of any Claim under this Plan shall constitute a waiver or release by the Debtor, the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's

designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trust (as applicable) of any and all claims, rights, and causes of action that either may possess against such holder.

7.13 7.12 Insurance Preservation and Proceeds.

Nothing contained herein, including any releases, shall diminish or impair the enforceability of any policies of insurance that cover claims against the Debtor or any other Person.

ARTICLE VIII

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

8.1 Conditions Precedent to Confirmation.

Confirmation of this Plan is subject to the following conditions having been satisfied or waived:

- (i) entry of the Confirmation Order, which shall be in form and substance satisfactory to the Debtor and DASNY;
- (ii) availability of and binding commitments to provide funding for consummation of this Plan, including the following:
 - (A) the amounts proposed by DASNY to be provided under the DIP Facility and approved by the Bankruptcy Court to be reserved for payment by the Disbursement Agent of all Allowed Administrative Claims (including Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claims) and all Allowed Claims in each of Classes 1, 2, and 3;
 - (B) the \$200,000 of funding for the Liquidating Trust to be provided by DASNY to the Debtor pursuant to the DIP Facility for transfer to the Liquidating Trust on the Effective Date; and
 - (C) the initial funding for the Reorganized Debtor to be provided by DASNY pursuant to an exit financing facility; and
- (iii) the New Board for the Reorganized Debtor shall have been selected.

8.2 *Conditions Precedent to the Effective Date.*

The occurrence of the Effective Date is subject to the following conditions having been satisfied or waived:

(i) the Confirmation Order in form and substance acceptable to the Debtor and DASNY shall have been entered and shall have become a Final Order;
- (ii) the Debtor shall have received all authorizations, consents, regulatory approvals, rulings, or documents necessary to implement this Plan;
- (iii) either DASNY, on behalf of DASNY's designee, or the Reorganized Debtor (as applicable), and each of the following shall have agreed in writing to resolve, or the Bankruptcy Court shall have resolved, any remaining disputes with and concerning:
 - counterparties as to the terms of material real property leases to be assumed by DASNY's designee or by the Reorganized Debtor;
 - counterparties as to the terms of material executory contracts to be assumed by the Reorganized Debtor;
 - critical vendors as to credit terms for the Reorganized Debtor;
 - the United States Secretary of Health and Human Services, as to the amount of liabilities assumed by the Reorganized Debtor respecting the Debtor's operator agreements;
 - CIR, 1199, NYSNA, and any other counterparty as to the terms of its respective collective bargaining agreement, employee pension and benefit agreements, or other related and analogous agreements;
 - applicable parties respecting each other material matter set forth herein that is to be agreed upon; and
- (iv) all requisite funding then due to the Liquidating Trust, Disbursement Agent, Debtor, or Reorganized Debtor shall have been provided or be the subject of a binding commitment.

8.3 Waiver of Conditions Precedent.

Other than the requirement that the Confirmation Order must be entered, which cannot be waived, the requirement that a particular condition be satisfied may be waived in whole or part by the Debtor, with the prior written consent of DASNY, without notice and a hearing, and the Debtor's benefits under the "mootness doctrine" shall be unaffected by any related provision hereof. The failure to satisfy or waive any condition may be asserted by the Debtor regardless of the circumstances giving rise to the failure of such condition to be satisfied (including, without limitation, any act, action, failure to act or inaction by the Debtor). The failure of the Debtor to assert the non-satisfaction of any such conditions shall not be deemed a waiver of any other rights hereunder, and each such right shall be deemed an ongoing right that may be asserted or waived (as set forth herein) at any time or from time to time.

8.4 Effect of Non-Occurrence of the Conditions Precedent to Confirmation and Effective Date.

If each of the conditions to confirmation of this Plan and occurrence of the Effective Date has not been satisfied or duly waived on or before the first Business Day that is more than 180 days after the Confirmation Date, or by such later date as is proposed by the Debtor, with the consent of DASNY, and, after notice and a hearing, approved by the Bankruptcy Court, upon motion by any party in interest made before the time that each of the conditions has been satisfied or duly waived, the Confirmation Order may be vacated by the Bankruptcy Court; provided, however, that notwithstanding the filing of such a motion, the Confirmation Order shall not be vacated if each of the conditions to consummation is either satisfied or duly waived before the Bankruptcy Court enters an order granting the relief requested in such motion. If the Confirmation Order is vacated, then this Plan shall be null and void in all respects, except for this Section 8.4 and Articles I, XI, and XII hereof, and nothing contained herein shall: (a) constitute a waiver or release of any Claims against the Debtor; or (b) prejudice in any manner the rights of the Debtor.

ARTICLE IX

EFFECTS OF PLAN CONFIRMATION

9.1 Discharge.

(a) Scope.

Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Plan or the Confirmation Order, in accordance with section 1141(d)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code, entry of the Confirmation Order shall act as a discharge, subject to occurrence of the Effective Date, of all debts of, Claims against, and liens on the Debtor, or its assets or properties, which debts, Claims, and liens arose at any time before the entry of the Confirmation Order. The discharge of the Debtor shall be effective as to each Claim, regardless of whether a proof of claim therefor was filed, whether the Claim is an Allowed Claim, or whether the holder thereof votes to accept this Plan. On the Effective Date, as to every discharged Claim, any holder of such Claim shall be precluded from asserting against the Debtor, the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trust, or the assets or properties of the Debtor, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidating Trust (as applicable), any other or further Claim based upon any document, instrument, act, omission, transaction, or other activity of any kind or nature that occurred before the Confirmation Date.

(b) Injunction.

In accordance with section 524 of the Bankruptcy Code, the discharge provided by this section and section 1141 of the Bankruptcy Code will, *inter alia*, act as an injunction against the commencement or continuation of any action, employment of process, or act to collect, offset or recover the debts, Claims, and liens so discharged.

9.2 *Releases of Liens.*

Unless a particular Claim is reinstated: (i) each holder of a Claim that is purportedly secured shall, on or immediately before the Effective Date and as a condition to receiving any Distribution under this Plan: (A) turn over and release to DASNY's designee or the Reorganized Debtor, as applicable, any and all property of the Debtor or the Estate that secures or purportedly secures such Claim; and (B) execute such documents and instruments as DASNY's designee or the Reorganized Debtor, as applicable, requires to evidence such claimant's release of such property; and (ii) on the Effective Date (or such other date described in this subsection), all claims, right, title, and interest in such property shall be assigned or revert to DASNY's designee or the Reorganized Debtor, as applicable, free and clear of all Claims, including (without limitation) liens, claims, charges, pledges, encumbrances, and/or interests of any kind. All liens of the holders of such Claims on property of the Debtor, the Estate, and/or the Reorganized Debtor shall be deemed to be canceled and released as of the Effective Date (or such other date described in this subsection). Notwithstanding the immediately preceding sentence, any such holder of a Disputed Claim shall not be required to execute and deliver such release of liens until ten (10) days after such Claim becomes an Allowed Claim or a Disallowed Claim. To the extent any holder of a Claim fails to release the relevant liens as described above, DASNY's designee or the Reorganized Debtor, as applicable, may act as attorney-in-fact, on behalf of the holder of such liens, to provide any releases required for any purpose.

9.3 Vesting and Either Retention or Assignment of Causes of Action.

Except as otherwise expressly provided for in this Plan or the Confirmation Order, on the Effective Date, all property of the Estate shall either be vested in and: (i) retained by the Reorganized Debtor; or (ii) assigned to the Disbursement Agent, DASNY's designee, or the Liquidating Trust, as applicable, free and clear of all Claims, liens, claims, charges, pledges, encumbrances, and/or interests of any kind of holders of Claims, except for the rights to Distribution afforded to holders of certain Claims under this Plan. After the Effective Date, the Disbursement Agent, DASNY, DASNY's designee, the Liquidating Trust, and the Reorganized Debtor shall have no liability to holders of Claims other than as provided for in this Plan or the Confirmation Order.

Except as otherwise provided for in this Plan or the Confirmation Order, or in any contract, instrument, release, or other agreement entered into in connection with this Plan or by order of the Bankruptcy Court, in accordance with section 1123(b) of the Bankruptcy Code, the Debtor shall retain and may enforce any claims, rights, and causes of action the Debtor or the Estate held. Those causes of action shall not include the causes of action to be assigned to the Liquidating Trust pursuant to this Plan.

As of the Effective Date, the Reorganized Debtor may operate its business and use and acquire assets, and settle and compromise claims or interests without supervision of the Bankruptcy Court, free of any restrictions of the Bankruptcy Code or Bankruptcy Rules, other than those restrictions expressly imposed by this Plan and/or the Confirmation Order.

9.4 Treatment of Certain Indemnification Obligations.

The obligations of the Debtor to indemnify individuals who now serve or served on or after the Petition Date as its trustees, and/or officers, pursuant to the Debtor's operating agreements, certificates of incorporation, by-laws, applicable statutes, and or pre-confirmation agreements as well as any order of the Bankruptcy Court, respecting all present and future actions, suits, and proceedings against any of such trustees or officers, based upon any act or omission in such-individual's capacity in providing such service with the Debtor on or before the Effective Date, as such obligations were in effect at the time of any such act or omission, shall be performed and honored by the Disbursement Agent from and to the extent of available funds held in a segregated account established solely for such purpose for a period no longer than three years after the Effective Date, up to an aggregate amount to be set forth in the Plan Supplement, of \$1,000,000, regardless of whether the underlying claims for which indemnification is sought are released pursuant to thethis Plan; provided, however, such indemnification obligations to be performed and honored by the Disbursement Agent shall not include: (a) Indemnification indemnification Claims based on claims arising prepetition that arecauses of action assigned to the Liquidating Trust under thethis Plan, but solely to the extent such claimsare found by a Final Order to entitle finds the Liquidating Trust is entitled to recovery on such claimscauses of action; (b) Indemnification indemnification Claims to the extent covered reimbursed by third party insurance; (c) Indemnification indemnification Claims to the extent found by a Final Order to be based on Claims that are the result of fraud, gross negligence, or willful misconduct; orand (d) Indemnification indemnification Claims by any individual dismissed for cause from his or her position as a trustee or officer of the Debtor. Any individual who receives reimbursement for indemnification pursuant to this section shall waive any right to assert or receive Distributions in respect of any Administrative Claim or Priority Claim for indemnification: (x) for the same amount(s) paid to such individual pursuant to this section; and (v) based on any prepetition acts or omissions.

9.5 Releases, Injunctions, and Related Provisions.

(a) Satisfaction of Claims.

The treatment provided for Allowed Claims pursuant to this Plan shall be in full and final satisfaction, settlement, release, and discharge of such Claims.

(b) Release of Debtor's Claims Against Released Parties Other Than Claims Based on Fraud, Gross Negligence, or Willful Misconduct, or Against Kurron Shares of America, Inc.

Except as otherwise expressly set forth in this Plan or the Confirmation Order, as of the Effective Date, for good and valuable consideration provided by each of the Released Parties, including good faith settlement and compromise of the claims released by this Plan and the services of the Debtor's officers, directors, trustees, managers, attorneys, and advisors facilitating expeditious implementation of this Plan, the Debtor and debtor in possession and any person seeking to exercise the rights of the Debtor's Estate, including, without limitation, the Liquidating Trustee, the Reorganized Debtor, any successor to the Debtor, or any representative of the Debtor's Estate appointed or selected pursuant to sections 1103, 1104, or 1123(b)(3) of

the Bankruptcy Code or under chapter 7 of the Bankruptcy Code, shall be deemed to conclusively, absolutely, unconditionally, irrevocably, and forever release and waive, and shall be deemed to have provided a full release to each Released Party and its respective property from all claims (as such term "claim" is defined in section 101(5) of the Bankruptcy Code), obligations, debts, suits, judgments, damages, demands, rights, causes of action, remedies and liabilities whatsoever, (other than all rights, remedies, and privileges to enforce this Plan or any agreement entered into in connection with this Plan or regarding claims expressly preserved under this Plan), whether liquidated or unliquidated, fixed or contingent, matured or unmatured, known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseen, existing or hereafter arising, in law, equity or otherwise that are based on, related to, or in any manner arising from, in whole or in part, any act, omission, transaction, event, or other occurrence taking place at any time up to immediately prior to the Effective Date in any way relating to the Debtor, the Reorganized Debtor, the subject matter of, or the transactions or events giving rise to, any Claim that is treated in this Plan, the business or contractual arrangements between the Debtor and any Released Party, the restructuring of Claims prior to or in the Chapter 11 Case, the parties released pursuant to Section 9.5(b) of this Plan, the Chapter 11 Case, this Plan or the Disclosure Statement, or any related contracts, instruments, releases, agreements, or documents, or upon any other act or omission, transaction, agreement, event, or other occurrence taking place on or before the Effective Date, and that could have been asserted by or on behalf of the Debtor, the debtor in possession, or its Estate, or any of its affiliates, whether directly, indirectly, derivatively or in any representative or any other capacity, individually or collectively, in their own right or on behalf of the holder of any Claim or other entity, against any Released Party; provided, however, in no event shall anything described in this Section 9.5(b) be construed as a release of: (i) claims and causes of action based on any Released Party's fraud, gross negligence, or willful misconduct, as determined by a Final Order of the Bankruptcy Court; or (ii) claims or causes of action against: (A) Kurron Shares of America, Inc., including without limitation, for the return of any <u>prepetition or postpetition fees</u>, to the extent not released under the Stipulation and Order, dated May 3, 2013 [Docket No. 446], or any other agreement binding on the Debtor; or (B) any officer of the Debtor, other than Robert Mariani, provided to the Debtor by Kurron Shares of America, Inc., but solely to the extent any such cause of action would be satisfied by insurance.

(c) Releases by Claim Holders.

As of the Effective Date, to the fullest extent permitted by law, each former or current holder of a Claim shall, in consideration for the obligations of the Debtor, Reorganized Debtor, and Liquidating Trustee under this Plan and the distributions, releases, and other agreements or documents to be delivered in connection with this Plan, be deemed to have forever released and waived the Released Parties from all claims, demands, debts, rights, causes of action, remedies or liabilities (other than the right to enforce the Debtor's, the Reorganized Debtor's, or the Liquidating Trustee's obligations under this Plan), whether liquidated or unliquidated, fixed or contingent, matured or unmatured, known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseen, then existing or thereafter arising, in law, equity, or otherwise that are based in whole or in part on any act or omission, transaction, event, or other occurrence taking place on or prior to the Effective Date (including prior to the Petition Date) in any way relating to the Debtor, the Reorganized Debtor, the Chapter 11 Case, this Plan, the Confirmation Order, or the Disclosure Statement, in each case at any time up to immediately prior to the Effective Date; provided, however, that such release by Claim holders shall not cover causes of action based on *IMC'S inability to fund its obligations under the so-called indemnity letters for medical malpractice coverage issued pre-petition to Covered Persons, but solely to the extent any such causes of action may be satisfied by insurance.*

(d) Releases by and of DASNY.

Except as otherwise expressly set forth in this Plan or the Confirmation Order, as of the Effective Date, DASNY (as DIP Lender and Prepetition Lender), on the one hand, and the Debtor, Reorganized Debtor, and Liquidating Trust, on the other, shall mutually release each other (and each other's respective officers, directors, trustees, employees, members, managers, attorneys, and advisors, each in its capacity as such) from any and all claims and obligations (other than to enforce obligations under this Plan or the Confirmation Order), including, for the avoidance of doubt: (1) any claims by DASNY as DIP Lender for repayment of the DIP Facility; (2) any Challenge (as defined in the DIP Order) respecting prepetition lien and claim matters; (3) any such claim on behalf of the Debtor's Estate that could be asserted by any party-in-interest with standing and requisite authority on behalf of the Debtor's Estate, including, without limitation, the Creditors' Committee; (4) any obligations of DASNY respecting the DIP Financing, including the Carve-Out; and (5) any claims, rights, and causes of action related to the transfer to the Liquidating Trust of control of any of the Debtor's assets.

(e) General Injunction.

Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Plan or Confirmation Order, as of the Effective Date, any Person that held or holds a Claim shall be permanently enjoined from taking any of the following actions against the Debtor, the Ombudsman, the Creditors' Committee or members thereof, DASNY, or present and former directors, officers, trustees, agents, advisors, attorneys, members, or employees of any such entity, each in its capacity as such, or any of their respective successors or assigns, on account of any Claim: (1) commencing or continuing in any manner any action or other proceeding respecting a Claim; (2) enforcing, attaching, collecting, or recovering in any manner any judgment, award, decree, or order respecting a Claim; (3) creating, perfecting, or enforcing any lien or encumbrance respecting a Claim; (4) asserting a setoff, right of subrogation, or recoupment of any kind respecting a Claim, the assets or other property of the Estate; and (5) commencing or continuing any action that does not comply with or is inconsistent with this Plan; provided, however, that nothing in such injunction shall preclude the holder of a Claim from pursuing: (i) third-parties or third-party insurance that does not cover Claims against the Debtor; or (ii) claims or causes of action based on IMC's inability to fund its obligations under so-called indemnity letters for medical malpractice coverage issued pre-petition solely to the extent any such causes of action may be satisfied by insurance.

(f) Covered Person Claims Injunction.

Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Confirmation Order, as of the Effective Date, all Persons shall be permanently enjoined from commencing or continuing any action or proceeding or from enforcing or collecting any judgment or order respecting a Covered Person Claim (i.e. any medical malpractice related claim or action against any Covered Person related to a Prepetition or Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claim); provided <u>however</u>, that such injunction shall not extend to pursuit of or recovery on such claims to the extent of recoveries against any available insurance. Any Covered Person Claim shall be channeled to and (other than recoveries from insurance) receive recoveries solely under the Plan pursuant to Section 4.2 if related to a Postpetition Medical Malpractice Claim or Section 5.6(b) if related to a Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claim. In exchange for this injunction: (i) each Covered Person shall be deemed to waive any Indemnification Claim against the Debtor; and (ii) each Covered Person seeking the benefit of such protection from Prepetition Medical Malpractice Claims shall make, or have made on his or her behalf, an agreed upon financial contribution to the Covered Persons Fund as listed in the Plan Supplement.

(g) Exculpation.

None of the Released Parties shall have or incur any liability to any former or current holder of any Claim or any member of or, representative of, or any organization speaking for the Debtor's community for any prepetition or postpetition act or omission in connection with, or arising out of the Debtor's restructuring, including without limitation, the negotiation and execution of this Plan, the Chapter 11 Case, the Disclosure Statement, the dissemination of this Plan, the solicitation of votes for and the pursuit of this Plan, the consummation of this Plan, or the administration of this Plan or the property to be distributed under this Plan, including, without limitation, all documents ancillary thereto, all decisions, actions, inactions, and alleged negligence or misconduct relating thereto and all prepetition or postpetition activities taken or omission in connection with this Plan or the restructuring of the Debtor, except for liability based on fraud, gross negligence, or willful misconduct, each as determined by a Final Order. The Released Parties shall be entitled to rely upon the advice of counsel respecting their duties and responsibilities under this Plan; provided, however, solely to the extent that it would contravene Rule 1.8(h)(1) of the New York Rules of Professional Conduct or any similar ethical rule of another jurisdiction, if binding on an attorney of a Released Party, no attorney of any Released Party shall be released by the Debtor or the Reorganized Debtor.

(h) Injunction Related to Exculpation.

This Plan and the Confirmation Order shall permanently enjoin the commencement or prosecution by any person or entityPerson, whether directly, derivatively or otherwise, of any Claims, obligations, suits, judgments, damages, demands, debts, rights, causes of action, or liabilities released herein.

9.6 Termination of Services of Patient Care Ombudsman.

On the Effective Date, the Ombudsman shall be released from all further authority, duty, responsibility, and obligation related to the Chapter 11 Case.

9.7 Dissolution of Creditors' Committee

After the Confirmation Date, the Creditors' Committee's duties shall be limited to addressing: (i) any appeal(s) of the Confirmation Order; (ii) objections to Fee Claims; and (iii) monitoring of any matters to be handled by the Liquidating Trust after the Effective Date. On the Effective Date, the Creditors' Committee shall be dissolved and the members of the Creditors' Committee shall be released from all rights and duties arising from or related to the Chapter 11

Case; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that professionals retained by the Creditors' Committee shall be entitled to reasonable compensation for fees and expenses incurred through the Effective Date, subject to any necessary approval by the Bankruptcy Court.

ARTICLE X

EXECUTORY CONTRACTS AND UNEXPIRED LEASES

10.1 Assumption and Rejection.

Subject to the occurrence of the Effective Date, all of the Debtor's executory contracts and leases not: (a) previously rejected by the Debtor; or (b) designated by DASNY, DASNY's designee, or the Reorganized Debtor as set forth in the Plan Supplement or such other mechanism as is approved by the Bankruptcy Court and assumed by the Debtor, shall be rejected as of the Petition Date or Confirmation Date (as applicable) or such other date designated by DASNY, DASNY's designee, or the Reorganized Debtor (as applicable), with such dates to be specified on or prior to the Effective Date or as otherwise agreed to with the counterparty to such executory contract or lease; provided, however, that the Debtor's collective bargaining agreements with: (i) the New York State Nurses Association; and (ii) 1199SEIU United Healthcare Workers East shall not be rejected under this Plan, but if and only if amended on terms acceptable to DASNY, will and shall be assumed.

Entry of the Confirmation Order, subject to the occurrence of the Effective Date, shall constitute: (a) the approval, pursuant to sections 365(a) and 1123(b)(2) of the Bankruptcy Code, of the assumption or the assumption and assignment of the executory contracts and unexpired leases assumed or assumed and assigned hereunder; and (b) the approval, pursuant to sections 365(a) and 1123(b)(2), of rejection of the executory contracts and unexpired leases rejected hereunder.

10.2 Cure Matters.

At the election of DASNY, DASNY's designee, or the Reorganized Debtor (as applicable), any monetary defaults under each executory contract and unexpired lease to be assumed hereunder shall be satisfied pursuant to section 365(b)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code, by either: (i) payment of the default amount (the "**Cure Amount**") in Cash on or as soon as reasonably practicable after the later to occur of (A) thirty (30) days after the determination of the Cure Amount and (B) the Effective Date or such other date as may be set by the Bankruptcy Court; or (ii) satisfaction on such other terms as agreed to by the Debtor or Reorganized Debtor and the non-Debtor party to such executory contract or unexpired lease, subject to the prior written consent of DASNY, DASNY's designee, or the Reorganized Debtor.

In the event of a dispute (each, a "<u>Cure Dispute</u>") regarding: (i) the Cure Amount; (ii) the ability of the Reorganized Debtor or DASNY's designee to provide "adequate assurance of future performance" (within the meaning of section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code) under the contract or lease to be assumed; or (iii) any other matter pertaining to the assumption of an executory contract or unexpired lease, the cure payment required by section 365(b)(1) of the Bankruptcy Code shall be made only following entry of a Final Order resolving the Cure Dispute and approving the assumption of such executory contract or unexpired lease. A Cure Dispute shall not delay the occurrence of the Effective Date.

10.3 Bar Date for Rejection Damages Claims.

Claims arising out of rejection of an executory contract or unexpired lease must be filed with the Bankruptcy Court no later than thirty (30) days after the later of: (a) the Effective Date; or (b) the date of the Debtor's or Reorganized Debtor's, as applicable, notice of determination to reject an executory contract or unexpired lease. Any Claim not filed within such time period shall be forever barred from assertion against the Debtor, the Reorganized Debtor, or the Liquidation Trust, as applicable.

ARTICLE XI

AMENDMENTS TO AND/OR WITHDRAWAL OF THIS PLAN

11.1 *Reservation of Rights.*

The Debtor reserves the right to amend or withdraw this Plan at any time before confirmation.

11.2 Impact of Withdrawal of Plan.

If the Debtor withdraws this Plan, nothing contained herein will be deemed to constitute a waiver or release of any claims by or against the Debtor or any other person, or to prejudice in any manner the rights of the Debtor or of any other person.

ARTICLE XII

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

12.1 Closing of the Chapter 11 Case.

When: (a) all Disputed Claims against the Debtor have become Allowed or have been Disallowed by Final Order; (b) all Distributions have been made pursuant to this Plan; and (c) no contested matter in the Chapter 11 Case remains outstanding, the Reorganized Debtor shall seek authority from the Bankruptcy Court to close the Chapter 11 Case in accordance with the Bankruptcy Code and Bankruptcy Rules.

12.2 Retention of Jurisdiction.

The Bankruptcy Court (and if the Bankruptcy Court cannot or will not adjudicate, the United States District Court for the Eastern District of New York) shall retain exclusive jurisdiction to adjudicate any and all claims or causes or action: (a) against any Released Party; (b) relating to the Debtor, this Plan, the Distributions, the Chapter 11 Case, or any contract, instrument, release, agreement, or document executed and delivered in connection with this Plan; and (c) brought by the Debtor (or any successor thereto, including the Reorganized Debtor), the Liquidating Trustee, or any holder of a Claim regarding such Claim, including, without limitation, any request to enforce releases, exculpations, and/or injunctions provided for in this Plan or Confirmation Order.

12.3 Governing Law.

Except to the extent the Bankruptcy Code, Bankruptcy Rules, or other federal laws apply, the rights and obligations arising hereunder shall be governed by the laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to principles of conflicts of law.

12.4 Severability.

If any provision herein is determined to be unenforceable, such determination shall not limit or affect the enforceability and operative effect of any other provision of this Plan.

12.5 *Time*.

In computing any period of time prescribed or allowed, unless otherwise set forth herein or determined by the Bankruptcy Court, the provisions of Bankruptcy Rule 9006 shall apply.

12.6 Monetary Figures.

All references herein to monetary figures shall refer to legal currency of the United States of America, unless otherwise expressly provided.

12.7 Successors and Assigns.

The rights, benefits, and obligations of any Person named or referred to herein shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of, the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and/or assigns of such Person.

12.8 Controlling Documents.

To the extent this Plan is inconsistent with the Disclosure Statement or any other agreement entered into between the Debtor and any party, this Plan shall control. To the extent this Plan is inconsistent with the Confirmation Order, the Confirmation Order (and any other orders of the Bankruptcy Court) shall control.

12.9 Notices.

All notices or requests in connection with this Plan shall be in writing and will be deemed to have been given when received by mail and addressed to:

(a) if to the Debtor:

Interfaith Medical Center, Inc.

1545 Atlantic Avenue Brooklyn, New York 11213 Attention: Chief Restructuring Officer Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

with copies to:

Willkie Farr & Gallagher LLP 787 Seventh Avenue New York, New York 10019 Attention: Alan J. Lipkin, Esq. Shaunna D. Jones, Esq. Telecopy: (212) 728-8111 E-mail: alipkin@willkie.com sjones@willkie.com

(b) if to DASNY:

Dormitory Authority of the State of New York 515 Broadway Albany, New York 12207 Attention: Larry N. Volk Telecopy: (518) 257-3101 E-mail: lvolk@dasny.org

with copies to:

Winston & Strawn LLP 200 Park Avenue New York, New York 10166 Attention: David Neier, Esq. Carrie V. Hardman, Esq. Telecopy: (212) 294-6700 E-mail: dneier@winston.com chardman@winston.com

(c) if to Committee:

Alston & Bird LLP 90 Park Avenue New York, New York 10016 Attention: Martin G. Bunin, Esq. Craig E. Freeman, Esq. Telecopy: (212) 922-3892 E-mail: marty.bunin@alston.com craig.freeman@alston.com Case 1-12-48226-cec Doc 1029 Filed 04/11/14 Entered 04/11/14 10:58:05

12.10 Reservation of Rights.

Except as expressly set forth herein, this Plan shall have no force or effect unless and until the Bankruptcy Court enters the Confirmation Order. None of the filing of this Plan, any statement or provision contained herein, or the taking of any action by the Debtor respecting this Plan shall be or shall be deemed to be, an admission or waiver of any rights of the Debtor respecting any Claim or equity interest prior to the Effective Date.

Dated: April 8,9, 2014

Respectfully submitted,

INTERFAITH MEDICAL CENTER, INC.,

a New York State non-profit corporation

By: /s/ Albert C. Wiltshire Albert C. Wiltshire Chairman, IMC Board of Trustees